Public Document Pack

AGENDA
Committee

-

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL

Date & Time

-

Wednesday, 27 January 2021 at 6.30 pm

Venue

-

This will be a meeting held in line with The
Local Authorities & Police & Crime Panels
(Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority &
Police & Crime Panel Meetings) (England &
Wales) Regulations 2020
The meeting will be held virtually via Zoom and
streamed live, via the following link:
www.facebook.com/SouthHollandDCofficial/

Membership of the Performance Monitoring Panel:
Councillors: B Alcock (Chairman), J R Astill, M D Booth (Vice-Chairman), C J T H Brewis,
T A Carter, A C Cronin, J L King, J D McLean, N H Pepper, P A Redgate, G P Scalese,
A C Tennant, J Tyrrell, S C Walsh and D J Wilkinson
Substitute members on the Performance Monitoring Panel may be appointed only
from members who are not on the Cabinet. Substitutions apply for individual
meetings only.
Quorum: 5

Persons attending the meeting are
requested to turn their mobile telephones to
silent mode
Democratic Services
Council Offices, Priory Road
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE
Date: 19 January 2021

Please ask for Democratic Services: Telephone 01775 764626
e-mail: demservices@sholland.gov.uk

Page 1

AGENDA

1

Apologies for absence.

2

Minutes To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meetings held on 10
November 2020 and 17 November 2020 (copies enclosed)
a)

Minutes of the Performance Monitoring Panel Meeting held on 10
November 2020

(Pages
5 - 18)

b)

Minutes of the Joint Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy
Development Panel Meeting held on 17 November 2020

(Pages
19 - 40)

3

Declaration of Interests. Where a Councillor has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest the Councillor
must declare the interest to the meeting and leave the meeting without
participating in any discussion or making a statement on the item,
except where a councillor is permitted to remain as a result of a grant of
dispensation.

4

Questions asked under Standing Order 6

5

Tracking of Recommendations To consider responses of the Cabinet to reports of the Panel.

6

Items referred from the Policy Development Panel.

7

Key Decision Plan To note the current Key Decision Plan

(Pages
41 - 48)

8

Q3 Performance Report To provide an update on how the Council is performing for the period 1st
October 2020 to 31st December 2020 (report of the Executive Director –
Commercialisation (S151) enclosed).

(Pages
49 - 72)

9

PMP Economic Development/Inward Investment update To provide an update to Performance Monitoring Panel on current work
being undertaken to support the South Holland economy (report of the
Deputy Leader of the Council and the Portfolio Holder for Growth and
Commercialisation enclosed).

(Pages
73 - 82)

10

Crime and Disorder Partnership Update To provide Members with an update on Community Safety Partnership
work at a county and local level (report of the Executive Director –
Commercialisation (S151) enclosed).

(Pages
83 118)

11

Corporate Enforcement Update To provide Members with an update on enforcement activity (report of
the Executive Director – Commercialisation (S151) enclosed).

(Pages
119 126)

Page 2

12

Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme To set out the Work Programme of the Performance Monitoring Panel
(report of Executive Manager – Governance enclosed).

(Pages
127 134)

13

Untidy Sites To provide an update on untidy sites within the district (report of the
Executive Director – Commercialisation (S151) enclosed).

(Pages
135 138)

(Please note that the appendix to this report is not for publication by
virtue of Paragraph 6 (Information which reveals that the authority
proposes: a) to give under any enactment a notice under or by virtue of
which requirements are imposed on a person) in Part 1 of Schedule 12
A of the Local Government Act 1972, and is therefore attached to this
agenda as item 16.
14

Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent -

NOTE:

No other business is permitted unless by reason of special
circumstances, which shall be specified in the minutes, the
Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s) should be
considered as a matter of urgency.

15

Exclusion of the Press and Public To consider that, under section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act
1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following
item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of
exempt information as defined in paragraph 6a of Schedule 12 (A) of the
Act.

16

Untidy Sites Appendix to the report at agenda item 13 is enclosed.

Page 3

(Pages
139 140)

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 2a)
-7-

Minutes of a meeting of the PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL held in line with
The Local Authorities & Police & Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local
Authority & Police & Crime Panel Meetings) (England & Wales) Regulations 2020, on
Tuesday, 10 November 2020 at 6.30 pm.
PRESENT
B Alcock (Chairman)
M D Booth (Vice-Chairman)
J R Astill
C J T H Brewis
T A Carter
A C Cronin

J L King
N H Pepper
P A Redgate
G P Scalese
A C Tennant

J Tyrrell
S C Walsh
D J Wilkinson

In Attendance: The Chief Executive (PSPS Ltd), the Director (Acting), the Executive
Manager Growth, the Executive Manager Governance, the Housing Landlord
Services Manager, the Environmental Services Manager, the Community
Development Manager, the Communities Manager, the Planning and Building Control
Manager, the Democratic Services Manager, the Business Intelligence Officer and
the Democratic Services Officer.
Action By

30

MINUTES
Consideration was given to the minutes of the meeting of the
Performance Monitoring Panel, held on 9 September 2020.
The Chairman commented that the request by the Panel for the
number of all fly-tipping incidents (not only those that the Council
had a duty to clear, but to include those on private land) had not
been resolved as required. The aim was to understand the full
magnitude of the problem. However, the issue was addressed
within the Quarter 2 Performance Report later in the agenda and
would be dealt with at that point.
AGREED:
That the minutes of the meeting of the Performance Monitoring
Panel held on 9 September 2020 be signed by the Chairman as a
correct record, as soon as reasonably practical after the meeting.

31

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS.
There were none.

Page 5

-8PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL 10 November 2020

32

QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER STANDING ORDER 6
There were none.

33

TRACKING OF RECOMMENDATIONS
There were none.

34

ITEMS REFERRED FROM THE POLICY DEVELOPMENT
PANEL.
There were none.

35

KEY DECISION PLAN
Consideration was given to the Key Decision Plan issued on 27
October 2020.
AGREED:
That the Key Decision Plan issued on 27 October 2020 be noted.

36

Q2 PERFORMANCE REPORT 20/21
Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager
for Growth, which provided an update on how the Council was
performing for the period 1 July 2020 to 30 September 2020.
The Quarter 2 2020-21 Performance report detailed in Appendix
A aimed to provide members, businesses and residents with an
overview of how the Council was performing against a number of
key strategic indicators in an ongoing COVID-19 pandemic. The
reported indicators provided an indication of performance and
business intelligence as compared to the previous year. This
enabled a view of how key services had performed, whilst the
organisation had continued to respond to the challenges and
pressures that the pandemic had presented to both the
organisation and the district as a whole.
The report did not include the suite of performance indicators to
the same scale and breadth as presented to the Panel in previous
years. This was because, in many cases, the focus of many
council services and their attendant resources had shifted away
from pre-March 2020 ‘ business as usual activity’, and were
instead focused on a different range of areas directly aligned to
supporting the Council with its pandemic response.

Page 6

-9PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL 10 November 2020

The report therefore sought to provide a summary of performance
in key areas which reflected the current performance of the
Council in a number of critical areas, whilst the organisation
remained focussed on supporting its communities, residents and
local businesses in extra-ordinary times. The narrative within the
report sought to provide supplementary commentary to support
the data, and several service managers were in attendance to
assist with any further issues not covered within the report.
The Panel considered the report, and the following issues were
raised:
Sickness data


The Performance and Business Intelligence Report showed a
significant number of working days lost to sickness, and that
these did not include COVID related sickness as this was
recorded separately.
Could officers provide any further
background?
o Officers responded that current sickness data showed CB
that 4% of staff were currently classed as sick.
However, further clarity would be sought on these
figures, and whether Covid-related illness was recorded
separately or was included in these figures, and this
information would be reported back to Panel members.

Media Impressions


Members asked for an explanation on the meaning of ‘Media
impressions’.
o Officers advised that this was the reach achieved by
social media posts on Facebook and Twitter, and the
number included the number of reads, shares and retweets.

Grants for Growth


Members stated that it was good to see that the number of
Grants for Growth applications accepted had only decreased
by one, in comparison to the same time last year.

Furlough/Universal Credit data


Members noted that the number of furloughed employees for
the period stood at 10,400. Further data for both furloughed
individuals and those on Universal Credit, such as the age
profile, was requested for comparison purposes.

Page 7

SH, MH

- 10 PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL 10 November 2020

Fly-tipping


Members were all in agreement that fly tipping was a terrible
scourge on the countryside and for private landowners. There
had been a large increase in cases – what actions were being
taken to deal with the problem?
o Officers responded that the Environmental Services
Team were tracking reports closely, and were working
with the Enforcement Team to ensure that any areas
repeatedly being targeted were picked up, and also to
identify any hotspots that the team were previously
unaware of. It was acknowledged that the incidence of
fly tipping was increasing, and officers were working
with Lincolnshire Waste Partnership on how to promote
positive social media with regard to educating the public
in the use of the Waste Recycling Centres to dispose of
their waste correctly.



Members commented that the average clearance time was
reasonable however, there were some extremes. Volume of
fly-tips, and speed of reaction to clearing them were the two
main issues – was sufficient resource being directed to the
problem? Appropriate resourcing was important as fly-tipping
was becoming more of a problem for the Authority and private
individuals.
o Officers replied that there had only been one extreme
case of fly-tipping which had impacted upon the data
however, this was the exception. In fact, clearance
times were better for this year than at the same point
the previous year. Location and severity were the main
reasons why clearance could take longer. Some fly-tips
involved the removal of hazardous material and
required the involvement of specialist contractors. The
clearance of fly-tipping was a function that had been
brought ‘in house’ and time frames had improved. It
was felt that no additional resource was required as
there was the ability in place to respond to incidents
where needed.



Members asked what the authority could do to assist private
landowners with regard to fly-tipping on their land.
o Officers advised that the authority could not remove flytipping from privately-owned land however, it would
advise landowners to look into any of the various
commercial options available to them.



It was stated that, in the past, there had been a reciprocal
arrangement between Lincolnshire County Council and a

Page 8

- 11 PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL 10 November 2020

number of adjoining authorities, which allowed items to be
accepted at each other’s waste recycling centres – this had
assisted residents in areas on the boundaries of the district to
take items to centres over the border that may be closer than
the centres within their own districts.
o Officers responded that they would take this forward
with Lincolnshire County Council to open up
discussions with relevant adjoining authorities.










CP

Members stated that it would be useful to compare the Quarter
2 figures to the Quarter 1 figures, rather than comparing to the
same time the previous year.
o Officers had the Quarter 1 information available, and
advised that for that period, the average number of
days to collect was 4.6 days, and the total number of
fly-tips was 307.
In response, members requested that when the Quarter 3
CG,MH
information was presented to the Panel, that for all areas, it
would be helpful for the Quarter 2 figures to be provided as
well, in order to compare and understand any shift in
performance caused by the Covid pandemic.
Members asked whether the Authority had successfully
prosecuted anyone with regard to fly-tipping?
o Officers did not have specific fly-tipping statistics to
hand, but stated that the Authority had a range of tools
and powers to deal with fly-tipping. Only severe cases
went through the court process however, due to the
Covid pandemic, many courts were not currently
hearing some cases. Officers stated that they could
provide information on fixed penalty notices issued for
any other measures taken during the period compared
to last year.
Members responded that 2-3 years of high level statistics
would be useful. They also commented that it was important
to get on top of the fly-tipping problem, and that a few wellpublicised prosecutions might have an effect.
o Officers replied that both the Community Safety and
Enforcement reports were due to be presented to the
next meeting of the Panel, and that they would include
fly tipping enforcement data in more detail, and would
also include 3 year of comparison data.
Members asked that their thanks and compliments be passed
on to the recycling and refuse collection staff for way they had
provided their service during the Covid period.

Universal Credit/Tax base

Page 9

EH,DB,CP

- 12 PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL 10 November 2020





Members noted that there had been an increase in the number
of people claiming Universal Credit – did this automatically
affect the tax base on which the Council Tax was based? This
information would be of interest to Parish Councils?
o Officers responded that it did have the potential to
impact on the tax base. The council tax base, the
number of properties and the number of council tax
bands was unlikely to change however, the prospect of
collection of council tax could potentially be impacted.
With regard to Universal Credit, working-age claimants
went directly to the DWP, and PSPS gained information
from an increase in Universal Credit claims through
Council Tax support, which would then be delivered to
eligible claimants. PSPS had been tracking any
increase, and there had been an 18% rise in benefits
claimants since April 2020. An increase from
November onwards had also been forecast as a result
of the furlough scheme ending however this had been
extended to the end of March so the potential increase
had been delayed. The other factor that had an impact
on collection was regarding enforcement activity – in
Quarter 1, the Council had made a decision not to
conduct enforcement activity or to seek to recover
unpaid council tax, due to the pandemic. In Quarter 2,
some ‘soft’ recovery activity had been undertaken. The
recovery process had therefore been delayed, and
some courts had just started listing for hearing. The
potential impact as a result of a delay in collection
would not be clear until at least Quarter 3.
Members responded stating that they believed, historically,
where a household claimed housing benefit, the household
was removed from the Council Tax base – was this still the
case?
SH
o Officers were not aware of this and would need to
check the situation and circulate to members.

Anti-Social Behaviour


Members noted that the figures for anti-social behaviour
appeared to be exactly the same for the current year as last
year – was this correct?
o Officers responded that this was correct however, the
make-up of the information was significantly different
due to operating in a different way. There were
currently no identified trends. Quarter 1 had more
concerns raised relating to issues closer to people’s
homes, due to the lockdown, rather than concerns in

Page 10

- 13 PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL 10 November 2020

public spaces. However, the crime statistics that would
be included within the Crime and Disorder update report
due at the January meeting would allow the Panel to
identify any particular trends around criminal activity or
incidents.




Members asked whether, for the Authority to pursue an
incident of anti-social behaviour, there was a requirement for a
member of the public who had witnessed the event to come
forward and report it, rather than Councillors making the
Authority aware of situations.
o Officers advised that they always welcomed feedback
from members with any intelligence they may have
however, in order that the Authority could respond
directly to an incident or progress a situation, the
incident needed reporting in the correct way. This was
to ensure that any victim of the anti-social behaviour
had the support they needed, and also so the Authority
could gather more detail that would help to build a case
and provide sufficient evidence, should it go to court.
Members confirmed the message that this was an evidencebased situation and that the Authority relied on the public
reporting any incidents to the Council, rather than only
advising their local councillor.
o Officers confirmed that this was the case and that
contact details were available on the Council’s website.

Void properties


Members asked why there had been an increase in void
properties over the period.
o Officers responded that they would have expected
lower numbers of properties becoming void, but there
had in fact been an unexpected sharp increase in voids
and the reasons for this had therefore been looked into.
There appeared to be an increase in the number of
people giving up their accommodation with the council
to seek accommodation in a more supported setting.
Officers were looking into these reasons in order to gain
some intelligence to assist with provision. One of the
biggest increases in the reasons given for leaving was
people going into care – this had to be understood
more fully with regard to the type of care they were
moving to. Many customers relied on formal or informal
networks of support and the pandemic had made it very
difficult for those relying on informal networks, such as
friends and neighbours, due to the various restrictions
that had been imposed on individuals. Tenants leaving

Page 11

- 14 PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL 10 November 2020





accommodation for a more supported setting had
therefore resulted in more void days, and the type of
properties involved, which tended to be sheltered
housing, often took longer to let than general needs
stock. In addition, more time was required between
various tradesmen undertaking their work at a void
property, in order to follow the current Covid safe
working practices. The knowledge gained from the
unexpected rise was helping the Council to understand
and shape the needs of its particular tenants, and
sessions with sheltered housing customers were being
undertaken to help understand and respond to any
issues.
There were a small number of voids that were void for a very
long period – what was the reason for this?
o The longest void periods were within the least-desirable
stock – these were predominantly a number of bedsits
within the sheltered housing stock where there was
traditionally low demand in comparison to one bedroom
bungalows. Customers often had to be more actively
sought to fill these properties. In response, the void
standard on these properties was being increased and
the properties were re-decorated and re-carpeted
before being offered for let. The Council was
contacting a number of eligible individuals and
discussing their particular needs in order to make them
a better option, but were also looking at the long-term
viability of these types of property within the housing
stock. There was a substantial need for housing
currently, and it was important that the Council had
suitable accommodation to offer individuals for their
needs.
Members responded that the bedsit was located within
sheltered housing and would not be attractive to the older age
group however, this type of accommodation would be more
suitable, and more popular with younger people.
o Officers agreed and stated that this was a piece of work
that officers were bringing forward. Many of the units
had been there for many years and had fulfilled the
needs of the community at the time however,
requirements and aspirations changed over time and
the Council’s offer needed to move in line with this.

AGREED:
That the report be noted.

Page 12

- 15 PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL 10 November 2020
37

SWIMMING POOL AND LEISURE FACILITIES TASK GROUP
UPDATE
Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director
Commercialisation (S151) which provided members with an
update on the Swimming Pool and Leisure Centre.
Following the approval of the recommendations of the Swimming
Pool and Leisure Facilities Contract Task Group, by the Cabinet
in November 2016, six monthly progress updates had been
provided to the Panel, with the last update on 11 September 2019
which covered the first six months of the new contract with
Parkwood Leisure.
As a result of Government instruction due to the Covid-19
pandemic, the facilities closed to the public on 20 March 2020 and
remained closed until approval to re-open was granted from 25
July 2020. Some activities were, and remained, restricted but a
phased approach to re-opening had been carried out in the three
months since, and details of this were included within the report,
along with how the facilities had adapted to comply with Covid
requirements.
The report provided information on participation at the facilities
pre-Covid, which showed increased participation levels and a
continued increase in total membership. It also laid out how the
effects of the pandemic had been addressed, both during
lockdown and post lockdown.
Members were advised that the report had been submitted prior
to the second lockdown, and the facilities were once again closed
from 5 November 2020 as a result of this.
The Panel considered the report, and the following issues were
raised:


Members commented that it was very encouraging to receive
a report which showed much improved results prior to the
lockdown caused by the pandemic, and that since re-opening,
there was renewed interest in attendance again. Over the
years there had been many difficult reports, but the new
contractor appeared to have turned the situation around and
this could be seen through the improved results within the
report.



At 1.7.4 of the report, it was stated that following the
resumption of Indoor Bowls on 7 September 2020, the Indoor
Bowls National Governing Body guidance had stated that

Page 13

- 16 PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL 10 November 2020

league matches would not recommence until January 2021.
However, it was clarified that the league had actually restarted on 5 October 2020, although this had now paused due
to the second lockdown.


Members commented that the café had not operated since the
start of the second lockdown.
o Officers advised that there had been no formal
notification of this, and that the Council were
working with Parkwood and the contractor of the
café.



In line with the terms of the contract, the Council had had to
pay out a substantial amount of money to keep the leisure
facilities running during the period of lockdown. Members
commented that whilst it was good to see the positive results,
there would need to be close scrutiny going forward.



The report stated that on average, 3-5 actions came out of the
inspections that were usually minor points around
housekeeping, or maintenance issues. Members asked
whether there were any issues that were outstanding, or were
they dealt with promptly? Had there been any requirement for
the Council to levy a penalty against the contractor for an
issue not being dealt with?
o Officers advised that during an inspection, the
officer from the Council was accompanied by a duty
manager from Parkwood and if any issues were
raised, the majority of them could be rectified at the
time. If they could not, a list of actions were rolled
over to the next inspection and these were then
checked to ensure they had been dealt with. No
penalties have been incurred.



Members asked whether usage figures were available for the
outgoing contractor so that comparison could be made with
the data from Parkwood.
o Figures from the previous year could be given
however, Parkwood measured their usage
differently to the previous contractor and the figures
would not give a direct comparison. Improvement in
Parkwood’s performance could be seen by
comparing month on month from the start of the
contract. It had been hoped to compare month to
month of the current and previous year however the
issues caused as a result of the pandemic did not
make this straightforward.
Members requested that in the next six-monthly report, an



Page 14

- 17 PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL 10 November 2020

explanation be provided around how each contractor’s ways of
measuring performance differed, and that any large anomalies
that could affect figures be highlighted. The Panel needed to
compare performance from one year to the next.




Had the new leisure contractor undertaken any detailed user
surveys and could these be shared with the Panel?
o Part of the agreement between the Council and
Parkwood had been that annual user surveys would
be undertaken. This had not been possible in the
current year due to the Covid pandemic however,
going forward, these would be undertaken annually
and the results shared with the Panel.
Members asked whether it was still possible for users of the
facilities to provide comments and feedback, and what
happened to this feedback?
o Officers advised that any verbal comments were
added to a comments book, that there were
feedback forms for users to complete, and there
was the opportunity to provide feedback via social
media. All comments were reported back in the
monthly contract reports.

AGREED:
That the report be noted.
38

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL WORK PROGRAMME
Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager
Governance, which set out the Work Programme of the
Performance Monitoring Panel. The Work Programme consisted
of two separate sections, the first setting out the dates of the
future Panel meetings along with proposed items for
consideration, and the second setting out the Task Groups that
had been identified by the Panel.
The Panel considered the report and the following issues were
raised:


Members stated that there were a large number of items due
to be considered at the January meeting of the Panel.
o Officers responded that they had identified that it
was indeed a large agenda and two suggestions
were put forward – 1) that some of the items be rescheduled to the March meeting, or later in the year;
and/or 2) that some of the items due to come

Page 15

EH,RR

EH,RR

- 18 PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL 10 November 2020

forward to the January meeting be updated by way
of a short presentation, rather than providing a full
report.


Members commented that an update on the Digital Work
Programme was due and reminded officers that as part of this,
financial information was required with regard to how much of
the funding had been used, what it had been used for and
whether value for money had been achieved.



Members commented that with regard to the Sir Halley
Stewart Playing Field Task Group, either an annual report, or
a meeting of the Task Group was required.
o Officers stated that it had been the recommendation
of the Task Group, with the approval of the Panel,
that the meeting should reconstitute on an annual
basis to ensure that the Council remained compliant
with the regulatory provisions of the Charity
Commission. Of the original Task Group, only two
members were still Councillors and it was suggested
that the Panel decide whether it wished to receive a
report to the next Panel meeting, or whether it
wished to form a new Task Group.
Members agreed that an update report be presented to the
next meeting of the Panel before a commitment was made to
set up a new Task Group. It was requested that the report
include an update on all the issues raised by the original Task
Group.





Members commented that the last Review of Implemented
Planning Decisions took place in September 2019 and the
next one was due in September 2020. It was clear that this
had not been possible, due to the pandemic, but it was
requested that this be scheduled for 2021, from April onwards.

AGREED:
a) That the Work Programme provided by the Executive
Manager Governance be noted;
b) That officers liaise with the Chairman regarding items due
for discussion at the next meeting of the Panel, and that
consideration be given to either providing verbal updates,
or rescheduling some of the items;
c) That the Digital Work Programme update include financial
information relating to how much funding had been used,
what it had been used for and whether value for money

Page 16

RB,CM,MS

SG

- 19 PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL 10 November 2020

had been achieved;
d) That with regard to the Sir Halley Steward Playing Field
Task Group, an update be presented to the Panel, to
include all issues raised by the original Task Group, in
order that the Panel could decide whether a new Task
Group was required; and
e) That officers arrange a new date for the Review of
Implemented Planning Decisions, to take place in
spring/summer 2021.
39

ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE
URGENT
There were none.

(The meeting ended at 7.40 pm)
(End of minutes)

Page 17

EH

CM,PN

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 2b)
-1-

Minutes of a meeting of the JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL AND
POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL held in line with The Local Authorities & Police &
Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority & Police & Crime Panel
Meetings) (England & Wales) Regulations 2020, on Tuesday, 17 November 2020 at
6.30 pm.
PRESENT

B Alcock
J R Astill
J Avery
A C Beal
M D Booth
C J T H Brewis
T A Carter

A C Cronin
R A Gibson
J D McLean
N H Pepper
P A Redgate
J L Reynolds
G T D Rudkin

A C Tennant
J Tyrrell
S C Walsh
D J Wilkinson
A R Woolf

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors F Biggadike,
M Hasan, J L King, G P Scalese and S-A Slade
In Attendance: The Interim Director, the Executive Manager Growth ,the Housing
Landlord Services Manager, the Democratic Services Manager, the Democratic
Services Officer and the Democratic Services Trainee.

Action By

1.

ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN
Councillor Woolf was elected Chairman for the duration of the
meeting.

2.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
The Panel was advised of the following substitution for this
meeting only:
Councillor A M Newton was replacing Councillor M Hasan

3.

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
There were none.

4.

HOMELESSNESS - HORIZON SCANNING
The Housing Landlord Services Manager provided the Panel with
a presentation on Homelessness in the District, the current
situation and how the Authority planned to address the issues.

Page 19

-2JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT
PANEL - 17 November 2020

The presentation provided information on the following:
 A definition of homelessness;
 The homelessness position in South Holland in the first week
of November 2020;
 The 2020 year to date figure for households in interim
accommodation (the average for the year was higher due to in
year Covid19 pressures, largely impacted by the Everyone In
initiative, where the Council was required to accommodate 29
rough sleepers, or those at risk of rough sleeping in hotel
accommodation);
 Rough sleeping – Significant interventions into this problem
were being addressed. South Holland, together with South
Kesteven, North Kesteven and West Lindsey District Councils,
had obtained grant monies from the Ministry of Housing,
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) under their
RSI3 scheme in the region of £600,000 – the project was
aimed at targeting rough sleepers and those at risk of rough
sleeping. South Holland had been awarded a small amount of
revenue funding from another MHCLG fund, Next Steps
Accommodation Programme (NSAP) towards short term
winter pressures. Finally, South Holland had recently been
awarded a further MHCLG funding allocation from the Cold
Weather fund, to provide enhanced winter support to rough
sleepers or those households who the Council would not
ordinarily have a duty to assist;
 Resources (People and Places). This detailed the various
ways in which the team aimed to respond to homelessness: 1)
Pathfinder - The Housing Options team were temporarily
refocused into prevention, relief and private sector through a
Tenancy Relations Officer role. Officers were being recruited
to take on the role of Housing First Responder to assess,
support and give basic advice to the increasing number of
applicants contacting the Council for more general advice; 2)
Change4Lincs – This project included access to a Rough
SIeeping Coordinator, 4 Street Outreach Workers, 4
Supported Tenancy Officers, 2 Intensive Support Workers (1
dedicated to South Holland) and 2 Lettings Officers; 3) NSAP
– In addition to accommodation solutions the Council could
develop, there would also be access to additional support
services through the provision of revenue funding for an
additional Intensive Support Worker; 4) Help2Rent – The
Council was currently in final negotiations with this insurance
provider. This was a government backed service where local
councils could purchase an insurance policy to support access
to the private sector. The policy provided cover in place of a
deposit, missed rent, damage, abandonment and legal fees.

Page 20

-3JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT
PANEL - 17 November 2020





Additional cover was also being added in for pets. The
scheme would be adopted by all other Lincolnshire District
Councils offering the same product to ensure continuity for
private sector offers; 5) Affordable Housing pipeline – There
had been 31 rented unit completions for the year to date, with
a further 42 expected. There were also 82 units planned for
2021/22; and 6) Void turnover – For the year to date - 207
Council properties had become void and available for letting.
Of these, 144 were general needs and 63 were sheltered
housing properties. The highest demand accommodation, 1
bed general needs, saw the lowest level of turnover, with only
11 properties becoming void. The highest property type
becoming void was general needs, 3 bed houses, and 63 had
become available during the period.
Systems (Northgate upgrade) – Members were advised that
an upgrade to the Northgate system was well underway. The
system had been used for certain areas of housing for some
time, but all housing work was now being moved onto it, and
this would allow Northgate to be used more effectively in areas
such as business intelligence. Housing options would have a
much improved back office and customer facing experience
through Housing Online and My Options, which would be
much more interactive than was currently the case.
Customers could upload information, which would be sent
directly to the case officer, and would be more efficient by
reducing the amount of time officers spent on administration
tasks. Personal housing plans could be managed online with
the customer. For those customer unable to access the
system however, alternative arrangements would be made.
Use of intelligence – There were sources of intelligence that
could be used to shape services going forward: 1)
Employment rates within the district were being closely
monitored; 2) One of the most significant changes had been
the number of people claiming Universal Credit, rising from
2891 in October 2019 to 7278 in October 2020; 3) There had
been a significant rise in those seeking work and in receipt of
benefits, rising from 1150 in October 2019 to 2590 in October
2020 – this information indicated a significant change in
people’s circumstances, and that these circumstances were
changing quickly; and 4) There had been a large increase in
the take-up of the Discretionary Housing Payment – to date,
£82,611 had been claimed from a total of £159,737, leaving
£77,126 available until 31 March 2021. This was a strong
position for South Holland, where take-up normally had to be
encouraged. Officers confirmed that early intervention, and
recognition of where other opportunities existed was vital. The
Council had important links with the DWP which were very

Page 21

-4JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT
PANEL - 17 November 2020



important, and also with the economy in South Holland which
could highlight any knock-on effects that might affect people’s
circumstances. There had been an incremental rise in
homelessness in South Holland and it was very important to
monitor the intelligence to reach conclusions and respond
effectively at an early stage.
Opportunities – There was an opportunity for Policy
development and how performance was interpreted: 1)
Housing Assistance Policy – this had recently been approved
by the Cabinet and had been updated to improve access to
financial assistance for homeless households, to provide
greater scope to apply discretion to Disabled Facilities Grants
(grants to support home owners and options for bringing
empty homes back into use), and to highlight financial
assistance available to existing council tenants facing hardship
to support them in sustaining their tenancy; 2) Allocations
Policy – work was currently underway on reviewing and
making substantial changes to this policy. It was import to
have a policy that met the needs of the client group and that
also allowed the council, as a landlord, to allocate its
properties effectively, and to also manage and host a suitable
housing register that fulfilled the requirements of the Council’s
registered provider partners; 3) Sheltered Housing Review – it
was proposed that a sheltered housing review be undertaken
to look at the type of properties and facilities on offer within
SHDC’s sheltered housing stock. Consideration would be
given to the type and quantity of stock held and whether it was
appropriate to meet needs. Properties could be proposed for
alternative uses which could assist the Council in fulfilling its
wider housing demand; 4) Homelessness and Rough Sleeping
strategy – the current strategy was due to come to an end next
year and this was an opportunity for the replacement strategy
to be revised and shaped to take account of local priorities and
pressures; and 5) Future funding opportunities – The Council
had been successful in the last 12 months in achieving
funding, with outline commitment from MHCLG of over
£1million of funding in support of rough sleeping. It was
important that SHDC continued to secure any additional
monies and continued to position itself effectively to take
advantage of opportunities when they arose.

Members considered the information and the following issues
were raised.


During the Covid period, there was an embargo on
undertaking any evictions – did officers anticipate many
problems once evictions could proceed again?

Page 22

-5JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT
PANEL - 17 November 2020

o Officers advised that the extended notice period,
previously 2 months, was currently 6 months, and
this provided a greater lead-in time to work with
people. There was a significant backlog of cases to
be heard through the County Court system and
these were being held in order of priority. There
were also other factors that would affect the rate at
which people presented themselves. The numbers
presenting themselves for loss of accommodation in
the private sector had reduced from around 30% of
SHDC’s homelessness statistics to 10% currently.
There were various reasons that this, for example,
changes in financial or personal circumstances, the
state of the property etc. The Council was working
with partners and encouraging tenants to contact
the Council at the earliest opportunity. In addition,
two resources had been re-positioned as Tenancy
Relations Officers to respond and build up expertise
to try and address the rise in private sector evictions
that was likely to occur.


What type of properties did the Council need to acquire in
order to meet the needs of the homeless, and for general
needs?
o The reason for the higher void figures for three
bedroom properties was that these were the
properties that the Authority had the most of. The
highest demand currently within general needs
housing was for single person accommodation, and
one or two bedroom properties, of which the
Authority had a low number within its stock. With
regard to the development of properties, officers
explained that one of the main roles of the Strategic
Housing Team was to liaise with developers when
planning applications were submitted, in order to
negotiate and secure the maximum level of
affordable housing to meet needs, and to try and
influence the design and type of properties in line
with local identified need. Over the last few years,
the focus of delivery had been on increasing the
amount of 1 or 2 bedroom accommodation. The
Authority played an important role in working with
developers and housing associations to shape the
type of properties that were built in order that they
could meet identified need. The Council could also
directly dictate accommodation type when it built its
own properties and again, the focus was on 1 and 2

Page 23

-6JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT
PANEL - 17 November 2020

bedrooms, as well as other options such as shared
ownership accommodation for older people.


At the meeting of Performance Monitoring Panel on 10
November, officers had been asked to explain the rise in void
properties over the period. Had there been any further
analysis on the information?
o Officers confirmed that there had been a higher
level of notices submitted within the pandemic
period which had resulted in a higher number of
voids. As stated at the meeting of Performance
Monitoring Panel, the reason for many of the notices
to quit had been that tenants were seeking
accommodation where care was provided. Officers
needed to understand specifically what that meant –
were tenants moving to a more formal care setting,
or to live with family or friends to receive care? The
restrictions imposed as a result of the pandemic had
meant that it was very likely that the level of informal
support from friends, families and neighbours would
have dropped, which could be affecting the rise in
notices to quit. When analysis of the information
had been undertaken, officers would provide this to
a future meeting. Officers also stated that the
Authority needed to be clear on the Sheltered
Housing offer available, in order that people could
make informed choices. There were now many tiers
of sheltered provision and it was not as
straightforward as it had been in the past.



Did the Authority still work with P3? Was Change for Lincs the
replacement for the service provided by P3? SHDC had not
been directly involved with P3 however, this would change
with Change for Lincs – was the Authority stretching itself by
being more directly involved, and did it have the specialist
knowledge required?
o Officers advised that P3 wished to exit from
Lincolnshire and had therefore not submitted a bid
for the Housing Related Support Contract. The new
contract was now in place. P3 would still be
providing the Street Outreach service until the end
of March 2021, when the service would end.
Officers explained that SHDC could have bid for
RS13 monies in its own right however, in terms of
support from the bid and monies allocated, this
would have limited the services that the Authority
could provide. Instead, it had pursued the Change

Page 24

-7JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT
PANEL - 17 November 2020

for Lincs project, which involved working with North
Kesteven, South Kesteven and West Lindsey
District Councils which created a greater bidding
power to allow each of the authorities to do what
they wanted. Working together also allowed for the
sharing of expertise and also the sharing and
moving around of particular resources to address
specific areas of pressure in each of the districts. A
Partnership Board had been set up and each
Authority was equally represented. South Kesteven
was the lead authority and undertook the
administration of the contract, finances, human
resources and associated elements. The
arrangement was working well, and 14 members of
staff had been brought on board


What was the Cold Weather Fund?
o Officers advised that SHDC had access to a Cold
Weather Fund which funded eligible individuals to
be helped in situations over and above what the
Housing Options Service would normally do.



Members were pleased to hear that the Allocations Policy was
being reviewed, and asked for a summary of the proposed
recommendations.
o Officers advised that they were hoping to both
broaden the number of applicants on the register,
and were also seeking to use the Allocations Policy
strategically in attracting applicants, to create
momentum in the market and ensure a robust
Housing Register. They were also proposing to give
equal priority to customers with a prevention or relief
need, to encourage people to engage with the
Authority at an earlier opportunity, rather than leave
it too late when their circumstances may have
worsened. The register was currently top heavy with
individuals in the most extreme circumstances, and
there needed to be more movement across it.
Rather than re-shaping the Allocations Policy as a
matter of course, it was essential that the Authority
brought forward a procedure that worked effectively,
that it engaged with its partners, encouraged people
to join the register and that encouraged registered
providers in having confidence in developing social
accommodation in South Holland.



Members acknowledged that the Authority had a very large

Page 25

-8JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT
PANEL - 17 November 2020

task ahead of it with regard to housing individuals, and that
there was a great risk that this could prove overwhelming. It
was important therefore to put a greater emphasis on
prevention or early intervention. The cost to, and suffering of
individuals was of great concern.
o Officers agreed that housing was currently a
significant risk area for the Council, which it had to
get right. Homelessness was very much a reactive
service – predictions could be made, and trends
analysed, and this information was useful to the
service however, situations such as the current
Covid pandemic and the problems that it was
causing could not have been forseen.
Homelessness would always inevitably cause huge
challenges - the service had moved forward and
would need to continue to do so at some pace.


Would the flow of properties becoming available to the Council
keep pace with the volume of people requiring it, or did the
Authority need to be more innovative in its approach to
providing the most needed type of property?
o Officers stated that the challenge with regard to
supply was that for certain parts of the South
Holland area, rents were relatively high (although
they could seem low in comparison to other areas of
the country) and therefore access to the private
sector was not always possible for people seeking
homelessness assistance. As a social housing
provider in the area, the Authority could help by
increasing the flow of rented properties, thus
regulating rents. The level of housing need
compared to the level of housing supply were often
far apart, and it was important therefore to maximise
all opportunities. It was vital to have homes across
all tenures, and the Authority therefore needed to
engage with the private sector, to be an enabler as
well as a delivery partner. It was also important to
assist home owners, although it was not always
possible to know how many were in difficulties.
Supply would be a challenge as the number of
affordable social homes that needed to be built was
unaffordable. It was important therefore to have
access to the greatest level of accommodation
possible and to look at different ways of assisting
those in need. Officers intended to fully address the
difficulties around the supply of homes, to make the
most of every opportunity that came forward, and

Page 26

-9JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT
PANEL - 17 November 2020

would explore different opportunities to address
these difficulties.


Who had control of the allocation of affordable houses, when
they became available? In the past, some houses had gone
into the private sector for private letting and now the priority
was for urgent cases around social housing.
o Any new build properties that were built by the
Council were allocated in line with the allocation
policy i.e. those in the greatest need. With regard to
the new Allocations Policy, officers would be
recommending that schemes over a certain
allocation would be of a mixed band allocation, and
therefore not allocated solely to those in a higher
band. It was hoped that this would create more
balanced and sustainable communities. With regard
to negotiating nomination agreements, most
schemes would have 100% nomination rights to the
first allocation. Having a nominations policy that
made it easier for registered providers to approach
the Authority for individuals from its own list, rather
than identifying tenants elsewhere, was a better
position to be in.



The Housing IT systems were becoming more updated and
integrated however, improvement had been promised some
time ago. Was there a timetable for when these
improvements would take place? These improvements were
needed now, not in the future.
o The build was well underway for My Options and
Housing Online. The switch on date was currently
scheduled for January however, this was subject to
testing, and was dependent on making sure that the
system worked and that the customer service
element for the user was satisfactory. The desire
was to switch over to using the Northgate system
early in 2021, and many of the elements of this have
been brought on line. For operational reasons, the
system had been set up first for the private sector
housing team. Officers understood members’
frustrations with IT upgrades taking longer than
anticipated however, this upgrade would ultimately
bring significant improvements.



Members commented that those involved in addressing the
problems around housing needed members’ great thanks and
support, but it was important that in the future, there was more

Page 27

- 10 JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT
PANEL - 17 November 2020

lateral thinking to address these issues.


Officers had stated that there was a postponement on
evictions, and that the courts would consider these in priority
order when they re-opened – what were the criteria with
regard to prioritisation?
o Any action relating to rent arrears only was
prioritised on the level of debt, and other
applications were prioritised dependent upon their
nature. Some emergency action had been taken,
listings had been secured for emergency injunctions
and gas injunctions, but this had not been possible
for possession claims. Private sector landlords
were all suffering similar delays and the authority
continued to liaise with solicitors and the local court
user groups. Consideration needed to be given to
the private sector as some private landlords were
suffering significant hardship themselves - it was
possible that the delays could ultimately result in a
reduction in the number of private sector homes
offered in the future. The court situation was not
currently causing any operational problems for the
Authority, as income collection was being sustained.



The rough sleeping aspect of homelessness was the most
visible. Significant efforts were being made to address this
however, for many individuals, homelessness could be only
one of a number of issues to be addressed. What was the
relationship between the Authority and other bodies that could
be involved in assisting these individuals in a variety of ways?
o There were many challenges involved in engaging
some individuals in mainstream services. One of the
reasons for the level of resources within the Change
for Lincs project was to recognise this fact, and one
of the posts was for the provision of a nurse to work
with, and to support these individuals to provide
immediate care. Other projects would involve
mental health professionals but there was some
evidence to indicate that addressing physical health
symptoms in the first instance assisted in future
engagement with individuals to discuss other
problems. The aim was to take help and services
out to those in need, so they could be assisted there
and then. Communication and engagement with
other partners was a work in progress. There were
a number of demands on the various agencies and
some work needed to be done with regard to

Page 28

- 11 JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT
PANEL - 17 November 2020

engaging with all these agencies. However,
Lincolnshire authorities were well connected through
involvement with the Housing Health and Care
Delivery Group and the District Housing Network
was also well attended. Projects were being
brought on by the District Council and it was
important that the link between the Authority and
other partners was built up to ensure that people
were connected with the services they needed.


It was clear that with regard to voids, properties could not be
built fast enough in relation to the problems that abounded. In
the long term, what was the situation with hard to let flats? It
was important to look at stock and how it could be used better.
It was also important to work in partnership with other
organisations such as housing associations and the private
sector, and for results to come out of this.
o Officers stated that the Authority held in its stock
some flats that were hard to let studio flats. These
were one of the biggest problems, so the voids
standards on these had been increased to make
them more attractive. The Authority had also written
to all tenants over 70 asking them to move to one of
these properties, should they wish and although
there had not been a large response to this, some
positive feedback had been received. The current
waiting list was small, and officers were looking at
longer term actions. With regard to the private
sector, it was important for the Authority to work in
partnership with this sector and to engage with
landlords to assist as an enabler. It was vitally
important that there was no downturn in this level of
accommodation.



With regard to the snapshot data provided in the presentation,
how did SHDC compare with neighbouring Councils that it was
partnered with?
o The South Holland area was the highest however,
this was a snapshot and not necessarily
representative of the overall situation. The
partnership had taken place to provide a stronger
response. Some surrounding areas such as Boston,
the City of Lincoln and coastal areas had a
significant imbalance of rough sleepers in regard to
the size of their districts. In 2018/19, SHDC saw a
steep rise but although figures were the highest
among the partners, they were not the highest in

Page 29

- 12 JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT
PANEL - 17 November 2020

Lincolnshire. Data around unemployment was not
available for all districts in the area however, there
was a document from the DWP which provided
more detail.


Was there any delay in dealing with general applicants on the
waiting list? In general, how long did homeless people have to
wait to be housed, and were they given any priority over
individuals already on the waiting list?
o With regard to the housing register, there was no
significant backlog in applications. For those
customers approaching the Authority as homeless,
or in need of advice or assistance, there were some
delays but not if they were eligible to be included on
the housing list. With regard to allocations where a
number of properties became available, a match list
from the housing system would be undertaken to
identify those in most need and they would be
offered housing accordingly, should the housing be
suitable for their needs. Reserve nominations would
also be identified. For smaller, rural areas,
applicants would sometimes be contacted to ask
them to widen their areas of preference. Individuals
in most need would be placed in a higher band on
the list and priority would then fall on those that had
been on the list the longest. With regard to
homeless applicants, where they were joining the
housing register as a result of being threatened with
homelessness, they were allowed a choice of areas.
If they were eligible through a duty of care by the
Council because they were homeless, one
reasonable offer of accommodation within the
district would be made. The roles of Housing First
Responders had been created to assist the user in a
quicker way.



Did the Authority work with any other partners or any other
homeless charities?
o The Authority worked with other providers in the
district, other charities and domestic abuse charities.
It always looked at how best to use its stock to
create flexibility.



Members agreed that if was important that, where individuals
had found themselves in difficulties, or had any concerns, that
it was important for them to speak to the Authority at an earlier
stage, before it became a bigger problem. Could work be

Page 30

- 13 JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT
PANEL - 17 November 2020

undertaken with Parish Councils in order to liaise on a more
local level with people? Could members do more?
o Members could help officers to understand how
services could be shaped in order to address
aspirations, and meetings such as this one were
useful. There were a number of opportunities in
relation to stock and services. Not everything could
be achieved, but there needed to be a broad
understanding of the key deliverables, bringing into
focus priorities that could deliver aspirations.
Officers often saw individuals at crisis point, and the
work being done, as discussed during the meeting,
could assist in improving this.
Members thanked the officer for the detailed presentation, and
also wished to thank him and his team for the work they were
currently undertaking.
5.

TOWN CENTRE IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME
The Interim Director and the Executive Manager Growth provided
the Panel with a presentation on the Town Centre Improvement
Plan (TCIP), and how this would affect the towns of Spalding and
Holbeach. The presentation included information on the
following:
Background to the Town Centre Improvement Plan
Council had considered a report on 27 November 2019,
concerning support for town centres, and the following had been
agreed:
 A remit to develop an improvement plan for both Spalding and
Holbeach. The TCIP was a programme of activity to support
town centres, rather than a wholescale regeneration
programme;
 Approval of a £500,000 budget, spread across three years, to
support the programme. Funding to go to delivery projects
directly, but also to support wider initiatives and make the case
for further funding;
 Creation of a new Town Centre Improvement Co-ordinator
role;
 Establishment of a partnership governance structure for the
TCIP work;
 Acceptance of government funding to progress a business
case for capital investment into Holbeach town centre.
Spalding TCIP – activity so far
 A successful launch event was undertaken in February 2020

Page 31

- 14 JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT
PANEL - 17 November 2020



with over 50 partners. This was used as a forum to bring
partners into the project and share ideas. A number of short,
medium and long term themes were identified by partners –
Identity/Brand; Town Centre Living; Digital; Business and
Enterprise; Making the town clean, safe and vibrant; Access
and transport; and Culture and leisure offering. A small
number of attendees were invited to form the Spalding TCIP
Steering Group.
In March 2020, the Covid-19 pandemic and national lockdown
commenced:
o This had had a huge immediate impact on all town
centres with a 12 week period of retail closure. Cultural
venues such as the South Holland Centre still remained
closed;
o This had brought about a fundamental shift in
immediate priorities during Spring/Summer for both
SHDC and its Steering Group partners;
o £18.4million in grants had been allocated to businesses
across the district;
o The TCIP co-ordinator had commenced her role in May
2020, with an immediate focus on the safe reopening of
the town centres, rather than undertaking TCIP work;
o Covid had accelerated a number of trends that created
challenges for town centres.

Spalding TCIP - Current activity
 Detailed work around devising the Town Centre Improvement
Programme had re-commenced. The Steering Group had
been established, with 22 partners. Initial engagement was
very positive. A long list of project proposals for the
programme, led by partners involved, was being developed,
with themes around – Improving appeal (street scene, untidy
areas, aesthetics, sense of safety); Travel and accessibility
(bus connectivity, car parking incentives); Covid-safe events
and activities (heritage, arts, Christmas trails); Enhancing and
diversifying the market; and Business and economy (business
incubation, digital infrastructure).
 The TCIP Co-ordinator was taking forward various other
activities, including a town centre user survey and prioritisation
of projects within the programme.
 Covid challenges persisted, with the planned November and
December events programme, funded by the TCIP, affected
by the second lockdown.
Principles underpinning the Town Centre Improvement
Programme
 The focus was on developing a two stage programme:

Page 32

- 15 JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT
PANEL - 17 November 2020







o Short to medium term projects, with the focus on getting
the basics right, to encourage the use of the town
centre by local residents;
o Medium to longer-term ideas and projects that might
deliver longer term change e.g. a business incubator
space.
Joint buy-in and accountability amongst stakeholders for the
creation of and delivery of the programme was essential. It
was for everybody, and not just the Council, to deliver the
plan;
It was important to develop a plan that used the resources of
others, not only those of the Council;
There was an expectation that the Steering Group members
would bring their time, capacity and connection to help the
Council to deliver;
The TCIP would provide the basis for developing future
external funding requests and the potential use of Springfields
S106 monies.

Town Centre Improvement Plan – Holbeach
 The approach to the Holbeach TCIP was different to Spalding.
In August 2019, Holbeach had been invited to submit a full
business case for capital funding under the Government’s
Future High Street Fund. A business case had been
submitted in July 2020 seeking approximately £5million in
capital funding to support capital investment in three major
projects:
o Creation of a new mixed use development at Chequers
Yard, Holbeach;
o Highway configuration work to address traffic
challenges at the Market Hill junction;
o Investment in a cycle network to improve accessibility
to the town centre.
 The TCIP budget had been used to support the business case
to government, with a full time project manager, funded by
government to develop the business case. The outcome of
the funding application was expected this winter, with the
outcome of the application shaping the focus of the TCIP for
Holbeach.
Upcoming activity and next steps
For Spalding:
 The focus was on prioritisation and sequencing of a shortlist of
projects that would form the immediate TCIP for Spalding;
 Some ‘quick win’ projects for 2021 were to be identified;
 There would be a continued building of the partnership
involved in delivery, with the Steering Group meeting again in

Page 33

- 16 JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT
PANEL - 17 November 2020

the next week;
 The town centre user survey would seek resident views to
inform the TCIP;
 The monitoring of key town centre buildings and engagement
with businesses would continue;
 External funding opportunities would be monitored.
For Holbeach:
 Preparatory work for the Future High Streets fund projects
would continue, whilst the outcome from government was
awaited;
 TCIP planning for Holbeach would be re-engaged in early
2021
All of the proposed activities for Spalding and Holbeach had to be
balanced with the challenges of Covid-19.
Panel members were invited to provide their views, thoughts and
perspective.


The towns of Holbeach and Spalding needed improvements.
One of the main concerns from businesses currently was that
while small shops had to remain shut as a result of the
lockdown, supermarkets and larger stores could stay open.



The schemes only related to Spalding and Holbeach – would
the scheme be extended to other towns in the district in due
course?
o It was recognised that many towns within the district
required help, and the debate at the meeting of
Council where the TCIP had first been considered
had borne this out. It was important that the
principles of the work to be undertaken were tested if these were successful, they would be extended
further to other towns. It was essential to get the
fundamentals right in Spalding and Holbeach, and
the most successful elements could then be rolled
out further.



A current priority for many businesses was when the next
tranche of grants would become available – many business
owners were in need of these funds.
o The next set of grants were to be released the next
day and would support many of the district’s
retailers. It was a banded scheme where the amount
of grant awarded was in relation to rateable value. A
lot of background work was being undertaken to
prepare for the administration of the grants. Details
of how businesses could apply would be shared with

Page 34

- 17 JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT
PANEL - 17 November 2020

members and with businesses that had already
approached the Authority.


A lot of good initiatives were being undertaken by the
Communities team – which budget was being used to fund
this?
o The Nutcracker project was being funded through
the Communities budget.



How much of the £500,000 budget had been spent so far?
o The Town Centre Improvement Plan Co-ordinator
role was funded from the budget. With regard to
Holbeach, a report that had been considered by
Cabinet in June committed a five figure sum out of
the Town Centre Improvement Plan budget to
support the work around the Holbeach Future High
Streets fund bid. With regard to the Spalding spend,
this was still a relatively small amount, in the region
of £5,000 – the low spend was as a result of the
postponement until next year of the majority of
events that had been planned.



Improvements to the Holbeach public toilets had been
promised – when would this be starting?
o Prior to the Covid outbreak, this was being
addressed. The renovation of the toilets had been
included in the Holbeach bid and it was necessary
to await the outcome of this before committing
further funds to this project. With regard to toilets on
a wider scale, the scrutiny Task Group looking into
this had undertaken a robust piece of work, and this
had now been recommissioned with a view to
moving forward.



Councillor Carter commented that as a Holbeach councillor,
she had not yet met the new Town Centre Improvement Plan
Coordinator.
o Officers stated that this would be arranged.



Were there any stakeholder contributions or external funding
for any of the schemes?
o Officers advised that this was not currently the case
however, this was to be discussed at the next
meeting with stakeholders who would be asked how
they could contribute to the delivery of the plan in
relation to time, resources, connections and money.

Page 35

- 18 JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT
PANEL - 17 November 2020



Members were very interested in what happened to Spalding.
It seemed that the Authority had been slow in realising that
efforts needed to be made with the town. Issues such as
cleanliness of the area, and public toilet provision were a real
issue and the basics needed to be done well. Spalding needed
an identity, it needed a better ambiance and people needed a
reason to go there. It had some good features and more
needed to be made of these. Consideration needed to be
given to the market, which was important to the town.
Enforcement of parking was an issue, as was the pedestrian
aspect of the town – if this was not enforced or there was a
need for the public to use their cars in the centre of the town,
should this be addressed? Conversion of buildings in the town
centre should be considered. Transport issues caused by the
railway were an ongoing problem. Could the South Holland
Centre be used for a different purpose whilst being closed
because of lockdown? There were many ideas that needed to
be considered.
o Officers advised that many of these points were
included in the improvement plan. Getting the
basics right was at the root of a successful project.
Members were also advised that a gentleman from
the Princes Trust had visited the town a few months
ago and had commented that the river was a very
positive feature within the town - it was felt that the
river should be used as a focus for many of the
plans going forward.



Town regeneration did not affect only Spalding and Holbeach
– this was a national issue, with much information available
online – benchmarking against other towns was important, and
existing information and the successes of others could be
used.
o This was an improvement plan rather than a
regeneration however, it was agreed that there was
much information that could be used. Getting the
fundamentals right could contribute to large
successes.



Had there been any discussions with towns of similar sizes to
learn what they had done?
o The Town Centre Improvement Plan Coordinator
had undertaken much of this research already, and
had also attended a number of events through the
District Councils network and the Local Government
Association. Many people were happy to share
information and intelligence. The Authority also

Page 36

- 19 JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT
PANEL - 17 November 2020

worked together with district neighbours.


Members requested that with regard to Holbeach, the Parish
Council be involved in discussions.
o If the funding bid was successful, there would be
much work to be undertaken and this would be done
with partners.



Members suggested that wider paths for alfresco dining and
better cycle routes would be beneficial.
o Officers advised that an officer from the Highways
Department at Lincolnshire County Council sat on
the Steering Group – this was a great opportunity to
work together to ensure that some of the projects
could come to fruition. A small amount of funding
was available to encourage cycle routes, and routes
connecting the town to other areas such as
Springfields, to make access easier were to be
encouraged. As a result of the Covid pandemic,
there was now more alfresco dining, and some of
the rules and regulations around this had been
relaxed to make this easier. This could be used as
an opportunity.



How much of the Springfields S106 monies were still
available, and had these yet been allocated?
o There were two amounts of S106 funding. There
was a small amount remaining from the original
development, which had been used for a number of
years to support Christmas events in the town.
Officers would confirm with members what the
remaining balance was.



Many businesses were leaving towns – what encouragement
could be given to them to return.
o This was a difficult issue. Officers confirmed that,
as a result of the Covid pandemic, businesses were
in receipt of a business rate holiday. The Authority
was working closely with businesses to understand
their needs, and although there wasn’t a suite of
options available for every business, where a
business had a particular problem, the Authority
would work with them to try and resolve it. More
funding was also coming from Government as part
of the Covid response – this consisted of a lump
sum of cash over the next 18 months to assist any
business within the Authority’s economy. A policy

Page 37

- 20 JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT
PANEL - 17 November 2020

would be developed to understand how this could
be used to support businesses, including town
centre businesses.


The Portfolio Holder for Commercialisation and Growth
thanked the officers for their presentation. He stated that it
was not currently ‘business as usual’ – much time was being
devoted to supporting businesses through the administration
of grants. However, efforts to work with the Steering Group on
this project still needed to proceed. The key point was
partnerships - it was encouraging that this was not just a
Council initiative, and that town businesses also needed to be
on board. A survey was being undertaken – it was important
to find out from this what the public wanted and did not want,
to listen to this, and to give them confidence in using the
towns. Some good points had been made by Panel members.
It was important to consider how the town could attract people
into them, and also to attract independent retailers.



Members commented that the recent Springfields application
had a £200,000 S106 fund attached to it which could assist
with the Town Centre Improvement Plan.



Many good points had been raised during the meeting and
those working with the Steering Group should take these on
board. In particular, officers should be thanked for the help
they provided to market traders and small businesses,
particularly with regard to the administration of grants. It was
very important to keep small businesses going and to support
them.

 With regard to Holbeach, much was reliant on a successful
outcome to the bid – was there a Plan B?
o The business case had highlighted a number of
issues to be resolved. If unsuccessful, the Town
Centre Improvement Plan would need to be looked
at again however, the key principle would always be
to work with local businesses and stakeholder.
Members thanked the officers for the clear and detailed
presentation.
6.

ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE
URGENT
There were none.

Page 38

- 21 JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT
PANEL - 17 November 2020

(The meeting ended at 9.30 pm)
(End of minutes)

Page 39

This page is intentionally left blank

Issued – 19 January 2021

KEY DECISION PLAN

Representations in respect of all the matters shown should be sent in writing, at least one week before the date or period the decision
is likely to be made, to:
Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE
Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk
The Key Decision Plan shows all Key decisions that the Council is likely to make over the next twelve months

Page 41

The Key Decision Plan is updated on a rolling basis and shows the decisions that will be considered and the date when the decision is
expected to be made. In accordance with the Council’s Constitution the DECISIONS detailed within this document, unless otherwise
stated, come into force and may then be implemented on the expiry of a 5 working day call-in period from the date of publication of
any decision.
Key decisions are: “A decision which, in relation to an executive function, has a significant effect on communities in two or more
Wards of the Council and / or is likely to result in the Authority incurring expenditure, generating income or making savings in any
single financial year above the threshold of £75,000 in respect of revenue expenditure and £180,000 in respect of capital expenditure.”

PORTFOLIO
HOLDER /
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION

CONSULTEES AND
METHOD OF
CONSULTATION

1

SUPPORTING
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF
DECISION AND WHO
WILL MAKE DECISION

Agenda Item 7

Significant decisions are: 1. A decision made in connection with setting the Council Tax; 2. A decision to approve any matter relating
to a Policy or Strategic Plan; 3. Any non-Executive decision which significantly affects the community in two or more wards or electoral
divisions. Some of the decisions will be recommendations to full Council, particularly if they impact on the Budget and the Policy
Framework (comprising of statutory plans and strategies)

PORTFOLIO
HOLDER /
SUBJECT
Portfolio Holder
for HRA &
Private Sector
Housing

PURPOSE OF DECISION

CONSULTEES AND
METHOD OF
CONSULTATION

Fire door replacement and associated
fire compliance works to sheltered
schemes

SUPPORTING
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF
DECISION AND WHO
WILL MAKE DECISION
Housing Landlord
Manager, or any other
officer with delegation
Not before 3rd Nov 2020

Fire door and
Compliance
contract

Page 42

Property
acquisition to
support Housing
Options service
delivery...

Acquisition of a property for the Next
Steps Accommodation Programme

Portfolio Holder
for HRA &
Private Sector
Housing

To procure a contractor for the
installation of kitchens and bathrooms
to the Councils housing stock

Portfolio Holder for Assets
& Planning, or Leader
Not before 8th Dec 2020

Housing Landlord
Manager, or any other
officer with delegation
Not before 31st Dec 2020

Kitchen and
Bathroom
upgrade
programme

2

PORTFOLIO
HOLDER /
SUBJECT
Portfolio Holder
for HRA &
Private Sector
Housing

PURPOSE OF DECISION

CONSULTEES AND
METHOD OF
CONSULTATION

To procure a contractor to undertake
paining and repairs to the Councils
housing stock

SUPPORTING
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF
DECISION AND WHO
WILL MAKE DECISION
Housing Landlord
Manager, or any other
officer with delegation
Not before 31st Dec 2020

Painting and
Repairs

Page 43

Public Sector
Partnership
Services Limited

To consider a request to admit a third
shareholder and to agree associated
changes to the Joint Venture
Shareholder Agreement

Leader

Approval of
Welland Homes
dividend or
charitable
donation
payment

To approve a dividend or charitable
donation by Welland Homes in
accordance with the Company’s
Dividend and Charitable Donation
policy, and where a charitable donation
is preferred, to approve the
beneficiary(ies) of the Charitable
Donation.

Portfolio Holder for Assets
& Planning, or Leader

Not before 8th Jan 2021

Not before 8th Jan 2021

3

PORTFOLIO
HOLDER /
SUBJECT
Portfolio Holder
for HRA &
Private Sector
Housing

PURPOSE OF DECISION

CONSULTEES AND
METHOD OF
CONSULTATION

Funding has been made available to
improve the energy efficiency to
homes within South Holland.

SUPPORTING
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF
DECISION AND WHO
WILL MAKE DECISION
Housing Landlord
Manager, or any other
officer with delegation
Not before 14th Jan 2021

Energy efficiency
works to council
properties

Page 44

Portfolio Holder
for Communities
& Facilities

The procurement of a contract to
undertake works to the Councils
assets is required. The contract will
allow use by the HRA if required

Executive Director Commercialisation (S151),
or any other officer with
delegation

Plumbing and
General
Maintenance
Contract
Portfolio Holder
for HRA &
Private Sector
Housing

Before 31 Jan 2021

There is a requirement to procure a
contract for works to commercial
assets owned by the Council. The
contract is intended to enable
occasional use if required for the
Councils properties

Executive Director Commercialisation (S151),
or any other officer with
delegation
Before 31 Jan 2021

Electrical Works
Contract

4

PORTFOLIO
HOLDER /
SUBJECT
Portfolio Holder
for
Environmental
Services

PURPOSE OF DECISION

CONSULTEES AND
METHOD OF
CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF
DECISION AND WHO
WILL MAKE DECISION

To provide an update on potential
improvements to the Daffodil Route
between Pinchbeck Road and Johnson
Hospital utilising section 106 funding to
improve health and well being
opportunities

Cabinet 16 Feb 2021, or
Leader

To consider the business case relating
to a potential acquisition project to
purchase 7 s106 units within the
district.

Cabinet 16 Feb 2021, or
Leader

To update the Shareholder on Welland
Homes Business Plan including a new
acquisition project.

Cabinet 16 Feb 2021, or
Leader

Daffodil Route
Improvements

Page 45

Portfolio Holder
for HRA &
Private Sector
Housing

South Holland District
Council 3 Mar 2021

Acquisition
project to
purchase S106
units
Portfolio Holder
for Assets &
Planning

South Holland District
Council 3 Mar 2021
Welland Homes
Business Plan
Update

5

PORTFOLIO
HOLDER /
SUBJECT
Portfolio Holder
for Finance,
Strategies,
Partnerships

Page 46

Treasury
Management
Policy &
Treasury
Management
Strategy
Statement,
Minimum
Revenue
Provision Policy
Statement and
Annual
Investment
Strategy
2021/22.

PURPOSE OF DECISION

CONSULTEES AND
METHOD OF
CONSULTATION

To provide scrutiny to the Treasury
Management Policy and Treasury
Management Strategy Statement,
Minimum Revenue Provision Policy
and Annual Investment Strategy
2021/22 prior to its submission to
Cabinet and Council.

SUPPORTING
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF
DECISION AND WHO
WILL MAKE DECISION
Cabinet 16 Feb 2021, or
Leader
South Holland District
Council 3 Mar 2021

6

PORTFOLIO
HOLDER /
SUBJECT
Portfolio Holder
for Assets &
Planning

PURPOSE OF DECISION

CONSULTEES AND
METHOD OF
CONSULTATION

To present the business case
associated with the purchase.

SUPPORTING
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF
DECISION AND WHO
WILL MAKE DECISION
Cabinet 27 Apr 2021, or
Leader
South Holland District
Council 12 May 2021

Acquisition
project to
purchase
dwellings for the
HRA

Page 47

Portfolio Holder
for Assets &
Planning

To agree a framework for future HRA
housing development investment
decisions.

Cabinet 27 Apr 2021, or
Leader
South Holland District
Council 12 May 2021

HRA
Development
Framework

*Cabinet Membership

7

The Lord Porter of Spalding CBE (Leader)
Councillor C N Worth (Deputy Leader of the Council)
Councillor P E Coupland (Deputy Leader)
Councillor A Casson (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor H Drury (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor R Gambba-Jones (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor R Grocock (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor C J Lawton (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor E J Sneath (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor G J Taylor (Portfolio Holder)

If you have any comments or queries regarding any of the entries in the Key Decision Plan please contact:

Page 48

Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE
Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk

8

Agenda Item 8
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Christine Marshall, Executive Director Growth and Commercialisation

To:

Performance Monitoring Panel, Wednesday 27th January 2021

Authors:

Corey Gooch, Senior Change, Innovation and Performance Partner and
Matthew Hogan, Executive Manager for Growth

Subject

Q2 Performance Report 20/21

Purpose:

To provide an update on how the Council is performing for the period
1st October 2020 to 31st December 2020

Recommendation(s):
1) That Performance Monitoring Panel note the contents of the report

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

The report seeks to provide Performance Monitoring Panel with an overview of a number of
key performance indicators for the council. The report concerns the period of Quarter 3
2020-21 (October 2020 until December 2020).

1.2

Members will note a revised Performance Monitoring Summary, following the same format
as detailed in the Quarter 2 report. The Quarter 3 2020-21 Performance Report detailed in
Appendix A aims to provide members, businesses and residents with an overview of how
the Council is performing against a number of key strategic indicators in an ongoing COVID19 pandemic. The reported indicators will provide an indication of performance and
business intelligence as compared to the previous year to highlight how key services have
performed whilst the organisation has continued to respond to the challenges and
pressures that the pandemic has presented to both the organisation and the district as a
whole.

1.3

As highlighted previously, members will note that the report does not contain a suite of
performance indicators to the same scale and breadth as presented to the previously Panel
in previous years. This is because, in many cases, the focus of many council services and
their attendant resources has shifted away from pre-March 2020 ‘business as usual
activity’, and are instead now focused on a different range of areas directly aligned to
supporting the council with its pandemic response.

1.4

Consequently, the report seeks to provide a summary of performance in key areas which
reflect the current performance of the council in a number of critical areas, whilst the
organisation remains focused on supporting its communities, residents and local business
in extra-ordinary times. The narrative within the report seeks to provide supplementary
commentary to support the data. Several service managers will be in attendance at the
Performance Monitoring Panel, and will be able to assist with any supplementary questions

Page 49

that the information within this report does not answer.
2.0

KEY PERFORMANCE AND BUSINESS INTELLIGENCE INDICATORS

2.1

The Council continues to adapt to how it has delivered its services since the start of the
Covid-19 Pandemic both in terms of moving towards a more agile and remote based way of
working, as well as responding to those most in need whether it be vulnerability or local
businesses within the economy.

2.2

Despite the challenges faced across both organisations, the drive has been to maintain the
provision of a seamless service to the council’s customer base. In terms of customer
contact, a number of emerging trends are observed within the data. During Q3 2020/21, the
council saw a drop in calls received by 7%. During the same period, the council has
continued to see residents channel shift towards more digital means which is reflected in
our social media engagements as well as the number of residents engaging with the
council via it’s website. The average wait time per call on average has slightly increased
since the last quarter and PSPS customer contact have highlighted this is largely due to the
enquiries received in 2020 relating to the pandemic and the additional signposting or
information being provided.

Q3 19/20
(Same
time
period
last year)

Q2 20/21
(Previous
Quarter)

Q3 20/21
(Current
reporting
period)

Change
against Q2
20/21

% of calls answered

95.4%

90.37%

93.54%

+3.5%

Number of calls received

8,610

8,358

7,801

-557 (-7%)

Average wait time (seconds)

67.6

101.6

110.3

+8.6 seconds

Average Call Duration (Customer
Contact)

260
Seconds

376
Seconds

310 Seconds

-66 Seconds

2.3

Whereas the number of calls into the council has continued to reduce into the Q3 reporting
period, it is worth noting that the council has observed a shift towards use of the council’s
website by residents as a means of accessing the services and information. This shift
towards web-based traffic amounts to around 18,000 additional visits in the reporting period
compared with the same quarter in the previous year as well as an increased audience
reach of around 25%. It is evident that the ongoing lockdown and restrictions due to the
pandemic has largely contributed to residents shifting towards alternative methods of
contact, however this does show that as a whole accessibility is functional and enabling all
residents to access our services and contact us.
Comparison between Q3 19/20 and Q3 20/21 shows there has been a significant shift
towards the use of social media as a means of communication and engagement. This is
evident by the increasing rise of social media engagement recorded by impressions
(description detailed in Appendix A) as well as an increase since the same period last year

Page 50

for website visitors. The council is also seeing a dip in the number of website visitors for Q3
and analysis indicates this to follow global trends in digital use during the pandemic which
is likely due to the council pages serving as a central hub of information for residents and
businesses throughout the pandemic but more specifically during Q1/Q2 where key
information was sought after. It is also worth considering there is potential for social media
engagement to reduce slightly over the coming months as a result of people beginning to
feel a ‘burnout’ from overuse of digital platforms early in lockdown as well as choosing to
avoid it so as not to engage with negative news, again this would be a global trend if it were
to occur not just exclusive to South Holland.
2.4

Our waste collection service has had one of its highest performing quarters, collecting
99.86% of all waste presented, despite the increased volume of collections brought on by
national lockdowns and more residents working from home. Fly tipping continues to rise
compared to the previous year, with an increase of 236 incidents as highlighted in
Appendix A. This is both a regional and national issue and is discussed regularly at both
strategic waste meetings and enforcement meetings to try and understand the causes and
also what can be done to help prevent these issues being seen. This is currently being led
on by a county-wide enforcement group. As you can see, despite the 175% increase in fly
tips reported compared to last year, the performance of collections within the target of 5
days has improved and on average collections were done within 4 working days. This
further highlights to the excellent performance of the street cleansing team who have
continued to work throughout the pandemic. As requested at previous PMP, reports of fly
tips on private land have begun being reported with 5 received in November and 1 in
December. The team will continue to report statistics on fly tipping involving private land to
PMP in future meetings.
Q3 19/20
(Same
time
period
last year)

Q2 20/21
Q3 19/20
(Previous
(Current
Quarter)
reporting
period)

Change since
Q2 20/21

Number of missed waste collections

46

49

45

-4

% of successful collections within the
district

99.86%

99.85%

99.86%

+0.01%

Number of working days to deal with fly
tipping

5.3 days

3.5 days

4 Days

+0.5 days

Number of fly tips

135

273

371

+98

2.5

In terms of economy and employment, as of November 2020 there were 7,513 people
claiming Universal Credit within the district, an increase of 348 compared to the previous
quarter. The council’s understanding is that this increase is the continued result of a
combination of self-employed individuals accessing UC due to changes in working patterns
due to both earlier lockdown restrictions, households claiming UC alongside being
furloughed, and an increase in redundancies. The council’s Economic Development team
continues to monitor this closely. At the last PMP members requested a breakdown of UC

Page 51

Claimants, we have worked with the inward investment team to pull together a breakdown
which can be found at the bottom of Appendix A to this report.
2.6

The attached Appendix A, includes further data around housing, housing development and
community related indicators with supporting supplementary commentary alongside.
Officers in attendance will be happy to take questions from the panel where further
explanation and discussion is needed.

2.7

In summary, it is acknowledged that this report follows on from the previous quarter in the
context it is in a different format to what we would usually see. The intention is to provide a
summary of the current status of the council’s performance in key areas, whilst sharing
intelligence that shows how the council has had to re purpose and refocus resources within
some of its services whilst working in a Covid pandemic.

3.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

That the contents of this report be noted

4.0

EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1

That the council’s performance is properly scrutinised

5.0

IMPLICATIONS
In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the
decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues;
Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Data Protection;
Equality & Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk
Management; Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales;
Transformation Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be
implications under one or more of these headings, these are identified below.

5.1

Constitutional & Legal

5.1.1

The report is made within the terms of reference of the Performance Monitoring Panel.

5.2

Crime and Disorder

5.2.1

The report contains indicators which does convey some information relating to crime and
disorder.

5.3

Financial

5.3.1

The report contains information on Council’s performance which does convey some
information relating to financial matters.

5.4

Health & Wellbeing

5.4.1

The report contains information on Council’s performance which does convey some
information relating to health and wellbeing.

Page 52

5.5

Reputation

5.5.1

Performance issues can cause some reputational consequence. It is the purpose of this
report to highlight performance issues at an early stage.

5.6

Risk Management

5.6.1

Performance issues may be subject to risk management measures to protect
Council interests.

5.7

Staffing

5.7.1

The report contains information on Council’s performance which does convey some
information relating to staffing.

5.8

Corporate Priorities

5.8.1

The report presents progress monitoring of key performance indicators from the corporate
priorities which highlight the areas of focus in the new BAU Covid era.

6.0

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1

No Wards or Communities are affected.

7.0

ACRONYMS

7.1

PSPS – Public Sector Partnerships Ltd
LCC – Lincolnshire County Council
CTS – Council Tax Support
ICO – Information Commissioner’s Office
LGO - Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman

Background papers:Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Telephone Number
Email:

Corey Gooch, Senior Change, Innovation and Performance Partner
07766510458
corey.gooch@Breckland-Sholland.gov.uk

Appendices attached to this report:
Appendix A

Q3 20/21 Performance and Business Intelligence Data

Page 53

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix A

SHDC Q3 Performance and Business Intelligence
Report- 20/21
Customer/Digital

% of calls answered

Q3 19/20
(Same time
period last
year)
95.4%

Q2 20/21
(Previous
Quarter)

Q3 20/21
(Current
reporting period)

Change against
Q2 20/21

90.37%

93.54%

+3.5%

Number of calls received

8,610

8,358

7,801

-557 (-7%)

Average wait time (seconds) (calculated from
after options have been selected)
Average Call Duration (Once connected to
customer contact agent)

67.6

101.6

110.3

+8.6 seconds

260 Seconds

376 Seconds 310 Seconds

-66 Seconds

Comments

Page 55

During Q3 2020/21, the council
saw a drop in calls received by 7%.
During the same period, the
council continued to see residents
‘channel shift’ towards more
digital means which is reflected in
our social media engagements as
well as the number of residents
engaging with the council via it’s
website.
Despite a reduction in calls from
we are seeing the average
duration of each call increase
quite significantly from 260 secs
to 310 when comparing to the
same period last year. This is
largely due to the enquiries
received in 2020 relating to the
pandemic and the additional
signposting or information being
provided.
The team continues to monitor
calls on a daily basis and react to

Appendix A

SHDC Q3 Performance and Business Intelligence
Report- 20/21

Page 56

Number of social media
572,503
engagements/impressions - defined as the
number of times our content is displayed, no
matter if it was clicked or not. A viewer does not
have to engage with the post in order for it to
count as an impression.
Number of unique website visitors - refers to the 87,453
number of distinct individuals requesting pages
from the website during a given period,
regardless of how often they visit.

1,005,495

1,043,541

+3.7%

141,398

105,456

-25.4%

% of FOI’s responded to in time

70%

83.9%

+13.9%

84.1%

the business need. As we move
into 2021 with a review of further
restrictions being put in place by
the Government, we expect call
volumes to increase as restrictions
impact our residents.
Comparison between Q3 19/20
and Q3 20/21 shows there has
been a significant shift towards
the use of social media as a means
of communication and
engagement, which has become
evident by the increasing rise of
social media engagement
recorded by impressions as well as
an increase since the same period
last year for website visitors, we
are seeing a dip in the number of
website visitors for Q3. We have
analysed this data alongside global
trends in digital use during the
pandemic and this is likely due to
the Council pages serving as a
central hub of information for
residents and businesses
throughout the pandemic but
more specifically at the during
Q1/Q2 where key information was
sought after.
As the council moves through the

Appendix A

SHDC Q3 Performance and Business Intelligence
Report- 20/21
Number of FOI received

59

88

100

+12

Page 57

pandemic is has seen FOI numbers
pick back up again, around 20% of
total FOIs received for this period
were COVID based, a few key
topics are often requested for
these types of FOIs such as - How much has the Council
paid in self-isolation £500
payments
- Discretionary payments
- How much the Council have
paid Businesses in COVID
grants
- Lists of businesses which have
received funds
- Whether political parties/
MPs have received grants
In light of the above and the
pressure services are already
facing due to the ongoing
pandemic and lockdown the
councils FOI Officer has
implemented a triage process of
all FOIs where the FOI officer will
work with the legal team to divert
and signpost FOI queries and
respond directly to requestors
with the correct information they
require or where this info can be
found on our website (where

Appendix A

SHDC Q3 Performance and Business Intelligence
Report- 20/21
appropriate).
% of complaints responded to in time
Number of complaints responded to

75%
20

80%
26

84.4%
24

+4.4%
-2

A decision was taken by SHDC
management, in agreement with
members, during the initial
lockdown to divert resources
toward the council’s response to
COVID 19. As a result, resource
normally dedicated to complaint
was diverted towards COVID 19.

Page 58

Legislation hasn't changed with
regards to FOIs and Complaints
during the pandemic but there is
an understanding across the
country that services are under
more pressure and we maintain a
good working relationship with
the local government
ombudsman, any complaints
received via the LGO would be
addressed immediately and in the
best way for the customer.
The contingency plan in place by
the Statutory information officer
is to triage complaints enabled a
lot of issues to be resolved as
service request. The Local
Government and Social Care
Ombudsman consider this best

Appendix A

SHDC Q3 Performance and Business Intelligence
Report- 20/21
practice.

Environmental services
Name

Number of missed waste collections

Q3 19/20
(Same time
period last
year)
46

Q2 20/21
(Previous
Quarter)

Q3 20/21
(Current
reporting period)

Change against
Q2 20/21

49

45

-4

% of successful collections within the district

99.86%

99.85%

99.86%

+0.01%

Comments

Page 59

In response to the ongoing
situation around COVID 19 and to
ensure the safety of our waste
crews, the staff rotas were
changed to a 5-day week. This
enabled the creation of cab
bubbles to ensure the continuity
of the service, putting in place
mitigation should any of the crew
develop Covid symptoms and be
required to isolate. Despite an
increase in tonnages due to the
festive period and the pandemic
which has seen more people
working from home, it is positive
to report that the environmental
services team had its best
performing quarter for waste
collection since 2016 with only
306 collections missed in total for
the whole quarter.
In the months since lock down, we

Appendix A

SHDC Q3 Performance and Business Intelligence
Report- 20/21

Page 60
Number of working days to deal with fly tipping
Number of fly tips

5.3 days
135

3.5 days
273

4 Days
371

+0.5 days
+98

Fly tips breakdown (monthly)

July- 40
August- 58
September66

July- 87
August- 123
September63

October - 128
November - 136
December - 107

October - 31+
November- 13+
December- 44+

have seen the number of fly tips
increase dramatically both month
on month and when compared to
the same time last year.
November has seen a 6% increase
in fly tipping compared to October
and 178% increase compared to
November last year. There has
been a 140% increase in the fly
tipping of “other household
waste” compared to the same
time last year. For context the
“other household waste” category
consists of a number of different
items types with furniture and
mattresses being the majority of
items reported in this group.
In the months since lock down, we
have seen the number of fly tips
increase dramatically when
compared to the same time last
year. September was the first
month that we saw fly tips
decrease
for some time with reduction
compared to the previous year
and the previous month.
November has seen a 6% increase
in fly tipping compared to October
and 178% increase compared to
November last year.

Appendix A

SHDC Q3 Performance and Business Intelligence
Report- 20/21
There has been a 140% increase in
the fly tipping of “other household
waste” compared to the same
time last year. For context the
“other household waste” category
consists of at least 45 items
(Furniture and mattresses being
the majority of this group) falling
into the category which should
have been booked as bulky waste
service requests.

Page 61

Housing
Name

Cases prevented from Homelessness

Q3 19/20
Q2 20/21
(Same time
(Previous
period last
Quarter)
year)
28
18

Q3 20/21
Change against
(Current reporting
Q2 20/21
period)
12

-6

Housing re-let void time (total avg. Key to Key)

19

30

27

-3 Days

Number of void days

922

2,375

2,139

-236 Days

Comments

Overall, there have been less
cases in the quarter meaning
there has been less outcomes
where homelessness has been
prevented.
Housing Re-let void times is
performing on target for this
quarter, analysis shows there
appears to have been an increase
in the number of deaths in the
most recent quarter, with this
being the most common reason
for termination of tenancy. The

Appendix A

SHDC Q3 Performance and Business Intelligence
Report- 20/21

Page 62

most common property type to
become void are two bedroom
bungalows. One bedroom
bungalows and three bedroom
houses are also amongst the
highest property types to become
void. It would not be uncommon
to see three bedroom houses
becoming available as the council
has a large number of these within
its stock. However, the trend of
two bedroom bungalows,
particularly sheltered bungalows
is higher than traditionally seen in
this quarter.
To date, the HRA rental income
has not been impacted by Covid19 and our accounts in arrears are
lower than this time last year.
Rent accounts continue to be
reviewed on a weekly basis by
Officers and the data is shared on
a monthly basis with the Deputy
s151 Officer. A £50k tenant
hardship fund was approved by
Council in November 2020.
Partner agencies, the wider
Housing Department,
Communities Team and Council
Tax Department are aware of how

Appendix A

SHDC Q3 Performance and Business Intelligence
Report- 20/21

Time taken to process DFG (Disabled Facilities
Grant) applications

199

321

301

-20 days

Page 63

to access the fund. Approximately
£45k remains in this budget and
we will be publicising the fund
further. The issue to date has
been tenants not providing
evidence that their income has
been affected.
There has been a reduction for
time taken to process DFG’s in Q3,
which is positive, the service
acknowledges this is still above
pre-COVID timescales and
continues to focus efforts on
processing applications as
effectively as possible.

Revenues and Benefits
Name

Business rate collection rate (%)

Q3 19/20
Q2 20/21
(Same time
(Previous
period last
Quarter)
year)
82.89%
53.21%

Q3 20/21
Change
Comments
(Current reporting Compared to
period)
same period last
year
77.91%
-3.8%
Slightly under the target of 81%,
This KPI has been significantly
affected by COVID19. Whilst a
large number of businesses (450)
within the Retail, Hospitality and
Leisure Discount scheme will
receive 100% (£8.1m) relief in
2020/21, a number of businesses
fall outside that scheme and a
significant number of these will

Appendix A

SHDC Q3 Performance and Business Intelligence
Report- 20/21

Page 64
Council tax collection rate (%)

84.9%

56.74%

83.8%

-1.1%

still have been adversely affected
by the implications of COVID19
restrictions on businesses. We
continue to support and signpost
ratepayer to support available and
where necessary make
appropriate payment
arrangements to best meet their
business rates liabilities for
2020/21. During December the
expansion to Spalding Power
Station was brought in to the
rating list (backdated to late June
19) which has had an adverse
impact on this month
performance by 2.93%; this
liability is payable in February and
March so we will expect to see
performance on this figure to be
on target in Q4.
This KPI has been significantly
affected by COVID19. We continue
to support and signpost taxpayers
to support available and where
necessary make appropriate
payment arrangements to best
meet their council tax liabilities for
2020/21. The first Magistrate's
Liability Order Court hearing for
2020/21 liabilities took place 23
November, picking up those

Appendix A

SHDC Q3 Performance and Business Intelligence
Report- 20/21

Page 65

taxpayers who in default but not
receiving Council Tax Support.
Proceedings have now
commenced for those taxpayers
who are in receipt of Council Tax
support and fallen in to arrears.
We are taking proactive steps to
engage directly with these
customers before determining
whether further enforcement is
required. This KPI will continue to
be monitored over the
forthcoming months to help fully
understand the continued
implications COVID19 has had on
tax payers in the district.

HR
Name

Staff Turnover (%)

Working days lost to sickness per FTE ( per
month)
Number of working days lost to sickness

Q3 19/20
Q2 20/21
(Same time
(Previous
period last
Quarter)
year)
2.81%%
2.03%

Q3 20/21
Change against
(Current reporting
Q2 20/21
period)
1.63%

-0.40%

0.96 Days

0.73 Days

0.72 Days

-0.01 Days

662

500

493

-7 days

Comments

In Quarter 3 there were 4 leavers
in comparison to 7 in Quarter 3
this time last year.
Absences for CV-19 are not
recorded as sickness however,
during quarter 3, 29 days were
lost due to being unable to work
either due to their own CV19

Appendix A

SHDC Q3 Performance and Business Intelligence
Report- 20/21
symptoms or needing to selfisolate when they could not work
from home.

Inward Investment
Name

Grants4growth delivery

13

Q3 20/21
Change against
(Current reporting
Q2 20/21
period)
7,513 (As of Nov
2020)

+348

21

+6

Page 66

Number of people on Universal Credit

Q3 19/20
Q2 20/21
(Same time
(Previous
period last
Quarter)
year)
3,128
7,165

15

Comments

UC numbers are rising, but please
note that some people
represented in these numbers
may still be on Furlough, or selfemployed people who cannot
trade at present due to
restrictions elsewhere in their
supply chain. The Economic
Development team are
monitoring this closely, and have
supported recent activity to
support matching job seekers with
vacancies in areas of the economy
where vacancies exist, including
the food sector.
Figures cover to the end of Dec
2021

Public Protection
Name

Q3 19/20
(Same time
period last

Q2 20/21
(Previous
Quarter)

Q3 20/21
Change against
(Current reporting
Q2 20/21
period)

Comments

Appendix A

SHDC Q3 Performance and Business Intelligence
Report- 20/21
year)
Food Businesses Rated 'Generally Satisfactory' or 99.09%
Above

New workplace outbreaks notified by PHE to
SHDC Environmental Health
Number of COVID related business enquiries
Number of COVID related business complaints

98.60

98.92%

+0.32%

N/A

3

13

+10

N/A
N/A

77
48

63
62

-14
+14

644 out of 651 food business in
the district are currently rated as
Generally satisfactory (3 Start) or
above.

Planning
Name

Page 67

% of Major applications determined within 13
weeks or agreed extension
% of Minor applications determined within 8
weeks or agreed extension

Q3 19/20
Q2 20/21
(Same time
(Previous
period last
Quarter)
year)
100%
92.86%

90.90%

-1.96%

96.39%

93.75%

+1.75%

92%

Q3 20/21
Change against
(Current reporting
Q2 20/21
period)

Comments

The performance of this KPI
reflects that on major
applications, the majority of
developers were willing to work
cooperatively and agree
extensions of time where
required.
There have been 339 new valid
applications for this quarter,
which is a significant increase,
compared to 226 in the Q3 period
last year.

Business Intelligence Q3 2020

Appendix A

SHDC Q3 Performance and Business Intelligence
Report- 20/21
Data Indicator
Evictions (presenting as homeless reason)
Number of Households in Temp
accommodation
No of Furloughed Employees

Page 68

Number of right to buy replacements
Number of starts (affordable housing
dwellings)
Number of completions (affordable
housing dwellings)
Number of affordable homes (under
construction)
Average property prices within the district
(HM Land registry)

Oct

Nov

Dec

Notes

0

0

0

National ban on evictions during this period

37

As of October 31st (Based off of the data released 17th
December by Gov)

1,900
0

0

0

2

0

10

-

30

13

243

237

234

£198,688

As of End of Dec (figure is cumulative)

£225,086

Number of extremely vulnerable South
Holland residents

£202,824

Last Published in December based on 61 sales, please note data
is as of November 2020 as property sales usually take a number
of months to be registered through the land registry, so
complete accuracy on these figures normally sees a lag of a 3-6
months

3670

Latest Figures as of Dec 2020

Local Restrictions Support Grants paid

£822,221.71

Since the November lockdown we have paid £822,221.71
in 555 payments to 401 businesses

Appendix A

SHDC Q3 Performance and Business Intelligence
Report- 20/21

Page 69
UC Applicants- Q3
In Q2 20/21, the council reported 7,165 people claiming Universal Credit (UC) within the district. The most up to date statistics for Q3 20/21 show that this
has risen again to 7,513. This is an increase of 4.8%.
Due to some statistics not being released fully for Q3 at the time of writing, the below analysis is based off data between October 2019 and October 2020.
This has been broken into three themes:
 Employment status
 Age
 Gender
Employment status-

Appendix A

SHDC Q3 Performance and Business Intelligence
Report- 20/21
In Q3 20/21, 3,874 (53.2%) of claimants were unemployment with the remaining 3413 (46.8%) claiming whilst currently in employment. Comparatively, in
Q3 20/21 1,858 people were claimants whilst in unemployment and 1,475 were claimants whilst in employment. UC applicants since October 2019 highlight
that UC applicants in South Holland are statistically more likely to be unemployed rather than in employment.

Page 70
AgeThe three age groups most likely to apply for UC in South Holland are those aged between 30-34, 2529 and 20-24. These applicants make up 43% of all claims made in Q3 20/21. These age groups also
made up the top three age groups in Q3 19/20. 30-34 year olds first became the largest age group of
applicants in April 2020. Statistics since October 2019 indicate that applicants from South Holland are
most likely to apply UC between the ages of 20-39.

Appendix A

SHDC Q3 Performance and Business Intelligence
Report- 20/21

Page 71
GenderIn Q3 20/21, 4153 UC claimants were women, compared to 3407 male applicants. Since October 2019,
women have always made up the larger proportion of applicants when broken down by gender.

Appendix A

SHDC Q3 Performance and Business Intelligence
Report- 20/21

Page 72

Agenda Item 9
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of;

Councillor Nick Worth, Deputy Leader of the Council, and Councillor Harry
Drury, Portfolio Holder for Growth and Commercialisation

To:

Performance Monitoring Panel Wednesday, 27 January 2021

(Author:

Nigel Burch Economic Development and Inward Investment Manager

Subject

PMP Economic Development/Inward Investment update

Purpose:

To provide an update to Performance Monitoring Panel on current work being
undertaken to support the South Holland economy

Recommendation(s):
1) That the panel give consideration to the report

1.0

Executive Summary

1.1

Since the last report to PMP in July, the team have been concentrating on the delivery of
the Governments Covid 19 business grants, namely the Small Business Grant and the
Retail, Hospitality and Leisure Grant. These two schemes closed for applications on Friday
28th August, but processing of applications continued until the end of September by which
time £18,450,750 was paid to 1654 South Holland Businesses.

1.2

The team then began work on the next round of funding, the Local Restrictions Support
Grant (LRSG closed), designed to support businesses who were mandated to close during
the November lockdown, with payments once again based on the rateable value of the
business. The LRSG (Closed) grant has provided £601,000 support for 401 businesses in
South Holland so far.

1.3

At the same time, one off funding was announced for those not eligible for the LRSG
closed, designated the Local Restrictions Support Grant Tier 3 (Open) Applications for this
scheme opened on the 22nd December and closed on the 11th January, with 196
applications being received. We anticipate that eligible applicants will start to be paid later
in the month.

1.4

Payment is also being made under the Governments ‘Wet Pub’ scheme which gives a one
off payment of £1000 to pubs that derive more than 50% of their income from sales of drink
rather than food. There will also now be a further scheme for business that are mandated to
close as a result of the latest lockdown, effective from the 5th January. This will apply once
again to businesses with a rateable value, those with an RV of £15,000 and under will
receive £4,000, those with an RV of £15,001 to £51,000 will receive £6,000, and those with
an RV of £51,001 and above will receive £9,000. These payments will be made in one go
and will cover a 42 day period from the 5th Jan 2021.

Page 73

1.5

Following representations made by the Council to the Chancellor of the Exchequer on
behalf of local horticultural businesses to re-open garden centres as their closure was
causing this sector extreme difficulties, the Government have since moved their position
and now class garden centres and nurseries as essential retail. This means that since July,
and during subsequent lockdowns and Tier restrictions, they have been able to stay open
and continue trading. This has had a big positive impact on the horticultural sector in the
district as a result of more stock being sourced locally.

1.6

Face-to-face business visits have now had to be postponed, but contact has been
maintained with many of our key businesses, a number of whom have been providing us
with valuable intelligence about the local economy which has been fed back to the GLLEP.
These conversations are helping us to understand some of the effects of Covid and the
transition out of the EU on our local businesses.

1.7

Construction of the first of the University buildings on the FEZ is now almost complete,
plans are/have been submitted for the Robotics and Automation building, and the third, a
hub which will contain the workspace, both industrial and office, for incoming and start-up
businesses. SHDC officers have has been at the centre of the work on the economic
strategy underpinning these buildings.

1.8

Grants 4growth continues to deliver its outputs on budget and on time, despite the team
spending time assisting with the Covid19 support grants.

1.9

Work continues to promote the district for Inward Investment purposes, contact has been
established with the DIT office in the Netherlands, and we are working closely with the UK
team to promote Lincolnshire through a Food manufacturing Automation and Robotics High
Potential Opportunity.

1.9.1

We are also working with a number of local business expansions and Inward Investment
enquiries, mainly based around the agri-food sector

2.0

Background

2.1

The Economic Development and Inward Investment service at South Holland District
Council plays a key role in contributing to and assisting in the delivery of the Council’s
Corporate Plan by helping to support the local economy utilising a number of different work
strands. The overall objective for the service is to maximise opportunities within the local
economy for the creation of jobs, in particular those of higher value utilising skills that are
need now to help local businesses transition towards higher productivity using automation
and robotics and other higher tech solutions, whilst retaining a readily available workforce
to service the inevitable seasonality of the agriculture/horticulture/food manufacturing
economy. The Inward Investment element aims to support existing businesses to expand,
and attract new businesses into the district, thus strengthening the supply chain and
growing business rate income.

2.2

The purpose of this report is to provide members with a further update on the continuing
work streams carried out by the team in the continuing face of the Covid19 pandemic.

3.0

Covid Response

Page 74

3.1

A total of 401 businesses were supported under the Local Restrictions Support Grant
payments for businesses that were mandated to close by law during the November
restrictions. The vast majority of eligible applications have now received their payments
amounting to circa £601,000 at the time of writing. The Government cut-off date for
applications is January 31st however, we are continuing to support businesses who did not
apply for the November payment but were eligible to do so, so there are still further
applications still to be dealt with, but all should be paid by the deadline of Feb 28th.

3.2

Businesses that were mandated to remain closed once lockdown finished and South
Holland moved into Tier 3 were entitled to receive a further grant payment for the period
covering December 2nd – December 30th. To date, around 117 businesses have received a
further grant payment totalling circa £185,000. Further payments will follow as we continue
to deal with late applications from businesses.

3.3

Businesses that were not mandated to close but whose income has been severely
impacted have been invited to apply for grant support providing they can demonstrate they
have been significantly affected as a result of both local and national restrictions. The
application window opened on the 22nd December and closed on January 11th with 197
applications being received. The team are now evaluating the type and size of business,
along with the severity of the financial impact on the business to assist in the decision
making process of how best to utilise the available funding for maximum impact.

3.4

Following the Prime Ministers announcement of a third period of national restrictions from
January 5th, the following support is now in place:







For businesses with an RV of £0-£15,000, a payment of £2,001 to cover the 42-day
period from January 5th – February 16th
For businesses with an RV of £15,001 - £51,000, a payment of £3,000 to cover the
same 42-day period
For businesses with an RV of £51,000+, a payment of £4,500 to cover the same 42-day
period
In addition to these funds, a one off ‘top-up’ payment will be made to all business
mandated to close of between £4,000, £6,000 and £9,000, again dependant on
rateable value
A further nationwide payment of £500m will be distributed to local authorities in the
coming weeks for be used to provide discretionary support to businesses

3.5

Government have also said that a payment needs to be paid for the Tier 4 period covering
December 30th to January 5th. In effect, this means that any business mandated to close
since December 31st will be entitled to a pro-rata payment to cover that period.
Since the start of the Covid-19 pandemic, South Holland District Council have, as of the
12th January, made 2129 payments to businesses totalling £19,182,332.

3.6

Universal Credit numbers are increasing, latest figures to the end of November 2020 report
7513 people in South Holland claiming Universal credit, up from 7250 at the end of October
2020, a rise of 3.63%. These month on month rises are down to a number of elements,
partly due to Universal Credit being rolled out to more people in the district, some people
on furlough also go onto UC as the 80% furlough payment puts them into the threshold
zone particularly where there a number of children in the family unit, and some selfemployed people who businesses are not able to trade because either their supplier or
customer, or both, have been mandated to close.

Page 75

3.7

We are working with both the LEP and the DWP to promote the County wide online jobs
fairs that are now being held on a monthly basis, this virtual approach will also allow job
seekers to access various types of support by entering ‘rooms’ where specific help will be
available in terms of writing a CV, re skilling opportunities etc. The latest event, held on the
21st January had over 85 ‘exhibitors taking part, offering either vacancies or help and
advice.

3.8

There is a concern that we are in a situation currently where a lot of smaller businesses
that might have been expected to fail in the face of the current economic climate are
actually being supported by the help from the Government and that there could be sharp
increase in insolvencies when the support ends. We continue to work on solutions utilising
Government support grants to ensure that as much help as possible is given where it is
most needed.

4.0

Business Engagement

4.1

Since officers last came before the panel all face to face business engagement has
ceased, but we continue to maintain contact with key contacts via remote solutions
including email and phone, but video conference options have now become the norm
across all sectors. This allows discussions to take place with businesses to allow us to
understand how they are coping with the pressures of both Covid and the end of the
transition period both of which are having significant impact on some of our businesses.

4.2

Conversations that take place with businesses and colleagues at the Department for Work
and Pensions are allowing us to understand how bigger businesses are affected by, and
responding to, the pressures they are under. In general, we are not seeing large numbers
of redundancies at the moment, due partly to the extension of the furlough scheme, and
also to the nature of the bigger businesses, the food manufacturing industry in particular
has retained the need for personnel and seem to only be furloughing those who are
extremely clinically vulnerable, in fact the bigger problem at the moment is people being
absent through self-isolation.

4.3

The horticulture sector is in a similar position, after a tough time during the first lockdown
where they and their supply chain were closed own, since July they have benefitted from
an upsurge in business and are weathering the storm reasonably well.

4.4

The latest figures from DWP which cover the period to the end of November 2020 show a
rise in the number of people claiming Universal Credit of 3.63% from 7250 in October 2020,
to 7513 in November 2020. In the same time period, the claimant count number, which is
now used as the measure for unemployment, shows a 3.71% increase from 2560 to 2655.

4.5

A major positive development for the council and the area since the last report to PMP is
the announcement of Lincolnshire within the Department for International Trade’s ‘High
Potential Opportunity’ programme. This is a government initiative coordinated by the
Department for International Trade, which seeks to identify opportunities to attract foreign
direct investment into emerging sectors, regions and clusters with the aim of creating new
jobs and growth.

4.6

In October 2020, it was announced that automation and robotics in the food manufacturing
sector in Lincolnshire was to be assigned ‘High Potential Opportunity’ status. Given the

Page 76

extent of the food manufacturing sector in South Holland, and the presence of key sites
such as the FEZ that are focused on automation and innovation, the HPO announcement s
a major opportunity for South Holland. The support from the DIT on the programme will see
promotion of the automation and robotics opportunity in Lincolnshire promoted through
DIT’s worldwide presence, starting in 2021. It also offers an unparalleled opportunity to
promote the FEZ as a site of international importance in research and development of
agriculture and food tech, along with a world class academic presence through the
University, amongst other things, to a global audience.
4.7

Officers from SHDC will now be working with colleagues across the county and a dedicated
team within the Department for International Trade to develop an ‘investment deck’ which
will be used to showcase the work already being done and further investment opportunities
in the sector within Greater Lincolnshire, in more than 177 cities around the world via the
DIT’s global network. This sector was chosen by DIT because of the expertise skills and
talent that we have in Lincolnshire engaged in this element of food production and
processing, and the global reputation enjoyed by the University of Lincoln and NCFM at
Holbeach.

4.8

Further to the HPO work, contact has been established with the DIT office in the
Netherlands and a discussion took place as to the benefits of South Holland as an option
for Dutch businesses wanting to establish a foothold in the UK over Kent which seemed to
be the only area on their radar.

5.0

Key Employment Sites

5.1

Work continues on the Food Enterprise Zone at Holbeach with construction of the
University’s Centre of Excellence in Food Manufacturing nearing completion, occupation
anticipated within the next couple of months. Plans and designs for the Robotics and
Automation Centre and the Hub building are also well underway.

5.2

In late 2019, a stakeholder meeting was held to explore the concept of a hub building for
the FEZ which would act as a central point for businesses and the University to allow the
sharing of ideas in a relaxed, informal atmosphere. This building would also contain
office/meeting space, and space within it would be available for hire by external parties as
well. Since the start of the Pandemic, conversations have continued to refine the potential
uses and design of the building, taking into account the likely requirements and restrictions
of a post covid world. This has led to a design being put forward that also includes the first
phase of units for eligible businesses to rent, as well as office and flexible meeting space,
along with e reception and refreshment area, all with associated car parking.
At the time of writing, a planning application has just been submitted to SHDC.

5.3

A dedicated marketing campaign is about to start to promote the FEZ to a much wider
audience, well known agents Pygott and Crone have been engaged to drive this initiative
forward. A number of business including a local agri-tech business that are expanding,
have expressed interest in taking space, and we are now in a position to be able to engage
with them to understand requirements and timelines. We also anticipate in upturn in interest
and enquiries once the HPO investment deck is completed and circulated in early summer.

5.4

Work also continues through a regular programme of both operational and strategic virtual
board meetings, enabling SHDC, LCC, the GLLEP and the University to work together as a
partnership in order to continue to drive the delivery of the site forward. In particular,

Page 77

discussions are taking place around how to resource delivery of the overall site in order to
stimulate the next phase of development which will require significant investment as the
pace increases.
5.5

The two main parcels of allocated employment land in the district, the Elsoms/Keeling land
on Wardentree lane, and the Ashwood Homes owned Clay Lake site, are still promoted to
potential Inward Investors and local businesses looking for expansion options, we maintain
regular contact with the agents and/or owners of these sites and forward enquiries to them
when appropriate. The Clay Lake site, also currently known as the East of England
Industrial Estate, is about to undergo a renewed marketing push that should help to
promote it to a wider audience and despite the difficulties experienced by all over the last
11 months, one of the agents is reporting an uplift in serious enquiries and is cautiously
optimistic for the coming year.

5.6

The availability of these sites, and other, smaller employment allocations are also shared
with the County Council (and thereby the GLLEP) as well as the DIT, so that the message
that there is allocated land available in South Holland is shared as widely as possible and
of course will be fed into the work being done as part of the High Potential Opportunity
mentioned above.

6.0

Inward Investment

6.1

Throughout the pandemic, the Inward Investment Team have continued to work closely
with the Department for International trade, in partnership with the County Council and the
GLLEP, helping to identify and support foreign owned businesses in the district by helping
them with their growth plans and signposting them to alternative support when appropriate.

6.2

We are also aware that there have been a number of acquisitions and mergers over the
last period, for example, last year, Robsons Haulage were taken over by Culina, a German
owned company who then bought Fowler Welch during this summer, and Robsons have
now moved their entire operation onto the Fowler Welch site. This strengthens the position
of both companies by streamlining the operation onto one site, and represents a big
investment by Culina into the district.

6.3

The team continue to engage with a number of businesses both within and outside the
district to identify suitable sites to support their expansion, working closely with the planning
team to deliver a joined up, business friendly approach. We are currently working closely
with 6 businesses, four of whom are South Holland Businesses looking to expand, and two
that are potential inward investors. The South Holland businesses are all in the
agri/food/horticulture sector, of the two external businesses, one is food related and one in
manufacturing. We have also assisted a manufacturing business that have taken over a
substantial industrial unit and will be starting production over the coming months with the
creation of circa 20 jobs.

6.4

The Economic Action plan continues to form the basis that drives our work, but the
marketing and promotion aspect has unfortunately had to be put on hold during the
pandemic due to much of the teams resource being diverted across to the delivery of the
various Government Covid related grant schemes. Promotion work has continued as much
as possible, particularly as previously mentioned via DIT and County Council colleagues,
and will get a significant boost once the High Potential Opportunity (HPO) work is ready to
roll out in the middle of 2021.

Page 78

6.5

As mentioned under the Business Engagement sector of the report, the establishment of
Lincolnshire as an HPO means that the Inward Investment team will be working closely
with GLLEP, Lincolnshire County Council, University colleagues and the Department for
International Trade (DIT) to attract overseas investment into the sector across Greater
Lincolnshire, this presents an Inward Investment opportunity that will have global reach,
allowing us to ensure that assets in the district, such as the Food Enterprise Zone and our
allocated employment allocation, are strongly represented, reinforcing the importance of
South Holland as central to the whole offer.

7.0

Skills

7.1

The skills agenda continues to be at the forefront of work being done at both a local and
County level, particularly now that the effects of the lockdown are becoming clear as
demonstrated by the rise in the number of people who have become unemployed. Whilst
the Economic Action Plan underpins what we do, the more immediate plan that all
Lincolnshire districts are working towards is that of Economic recovery, and skills and reskilling are a big part of this strategy.

7.2

In September 2020 the Government introduced the Kickstart scheme which is designed to
provide funding for employers to create job placements for 16 to 24 year olds who are on
Universal Credit. This scheme allows employers to apply for funding that will cover 100% of
the National Minimum Wage, for 25 hours a week for a total of 6 months, and the start of
the placement can be extended to the end of December 2021.

7.3

However, the Kickstart application must be for a minimum of 30 job placements, well
beyond the capabilities of many local businesses, so Kickstart Gateways have been set up
to help to pull together a cohort of 30 or more. The team are engaged with the Enterprise
Coordinator from the GLLEP’s Enterprise Advisor Network whose role is enable volunteers
from the private sector to work directly with the senior leadership teams in secondary
education and colleges to support more effective connection to the world of work and
develop, shape and add value to the schools or college’s careers, enterprise and employer
engagement strategy.

7.4

We will continue to work with and support this initiative so that when schools return to some
kind of normal, meaningful engagement can resume between schools and businesses.

8.0

Grants4growth

8.1

Despite lockdown, the unprecedented economic downturn, and core members of the G4G
team still heavily involved in assisting with the Covid grant delivery, G4G continues to
perform well against targets and budget. In the 12 months to end of December 2020,
£755,686 worth of grants were awarded to 70 businesses, creating 30 jobs and injecting
£1,755,005 worth of private sector investment into the Lincolnshire economy.

8.2

The project still awaits approval from MHCLG on an extension of the project to June 2023,
but MHCLG, like everyone else, have been affected by the current situation and many of
their staff have been moved across to help in the delivery of Covid grants, however, we are
confident that as and when things start to ease, full engagement with them will resume.

Page 79

8.3

Due to efficiencies created within the delivery of the project, we have also been able to
transfer £140,000 of revenue savings into capital, thus allowing additional capital grant
funding to made available.

9.0

Strategic Engagement

9.1

The ongoing pandemic and change of working means that many of the face to face
meetings with the various strategic partners no longer take place, some have been
replaced with virtual meetings, but others, such as the Lead Economic Development
Councillors meeting, have stopped. However, the team still engage with our partners at the
GLLEP, the County, DIT, University, other District Councils, Chamber of Commerce, and
the Federation of Small Businesses, as examples of key partners.

9.2

At the start of the Pandemic, the Lincolnshire Resilience Forum (LRF) Business and
Economy subgroup was formed, members including Economic Development Managers
from all the Local Authorities in the County along with colleagues from the County Council,
GLLEP, MHCLG, DWP and Lincolnshire Chamber, with the remit of preparing for the
recovery phase of the pandemic in order to get the economy back on its feet as soon as
possible.

9.3

By continuing to gather first hand intelligence from our businesses, and sharing that
intelligence with the group, we are able to ensure that businesses are kept informed of the
latest Government updates, and that we continue to share best practice on the
administration of grants, and any other support that may be required.

9.2

It is clear that in the future the way we interact with colleagues, partners and stakeholders
will change, but almost without exception, virtual meetings have become the norm and will
continue for some time to come, with the benefit of time and travel savings that come with
them.

10.0

Options

10.1

That the report be noted for consideration.

11.0

Reasons for Recommendation (s)

11.1

That the report is noted for consideration, so as to inform PMP on activity to support the
economy and invite any questions, thoughts and proposals from the panel

12.0

Expected Benefits

12.1

The Inward Investment Team provide a key role in helping to support and grow the local
economy by providing a valuable link between business, the Council, developers, funders,
training and education providers and other stakeholders, and by delivering the flagship
Grants4growth capital funding project which is now recognised as a business friendly
project serving the whole of Lincolnshire.

12.2

It also provides detailed knowledge and personal contact with business leaders in many
local businesses both large and small, and plays a wider role in making sure that South
Holland’s voice is heard at County and GLLEP level to ensure the Council has influence in
decisions around funding, skills, communications etc.

Page 80

13.0

Implications

13.1

In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the
decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues;
Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Equality &
Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk Management;
Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; Transformation
Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be implications under
one or more of these headings, these are identified below.

14.0

Wards/Communities Affected

14.1

This report encompasses all wards in South Holland.

15.0

Acronyms

15.1
15.2
15.3
15.4
15.5
15.6
15.7
15.8
15.9

FEZ
DIT
GLLEP
SHDC
LRSG
MHCLG
HPO
ED
RV

Food Enterprise Zone
Department for International Trade
Greater Lincolnshire Local Enterprise Partnership
South Holland District Council
Local Restrictions Support Grant
Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government
High Potential Opportunity
Economic Development
Rateable Value

Background papers:Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Telephone Number
Email:

Nigel Burch Inward Investment Manager
nburch@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision:

N

Exempt Decision:

N

This report refers to a Discretionary Service

Page 81

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Christine Marshall - Executive Director Commercialisation (S151)

To:

Performance Monitoring Panel Wednesday 27th January 2021

(Author:

Dee Bedford, Community Safety & Enforcement Manager)

Subject

Crime and Disorder Partnership Update

Purpose:

To provide Members with an update on Community Safety Partnership work
at a county and local level

Recommendation(s):
1) That the content of the report be noted
2) That Members consider areas of focus to be included in future updates

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

Performance Monitoring Panel request updates on partnership arrangements for
Community Safety twice a year. Due to Covid-19 the last meeting scheduled in March was
cancelled. An update on the most recent county Safer Lincolnshire Partnership (SLP) work
and local multi-agency work are provided within this report.

1.2

The SLP continue to work on the four core priorities;
 Anti-social Behaviour
 Domestic Abuse
 Reducing Offending
 Serious and Organised Crime (Fraud and Modern Day Slavery)

1.3

Emerging issues were also identified that cut across the priority groups;
 Mental Health
 Substance Misuse
 Information Sharing
The SLP Strategic Board, core priority groups and overview and scrutiny committee meet
quarterly. Key tasks and action plans are in place. Lincolnshire County Council’s Public
Protection and Communities Scrutiny Committee also review the work of the partnership
and sits as the Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee for these items.

1.4

Key Updates and progress within the Core Priority Groups (countywide)

1.4.1

Anti-Social Behaviour Core Priority Group (ASB CPG)

1.4.2

Fly-tipping

Page 83

The ASB CPG set up a Fly-tipping working group to roll out Hertfordshire’s SCRAP
campaign in Lincolnshire. SCRAP is based on an award-winning and successful campaign
continuing to be developed by the Hertfordshire Waste Partnership. The campaign reminds
people to check their waste is being taken away for disposal by a licensed carrier, either by
asking to see a Waste Carriers Licence or by looking up the company on the Environment
Agency website. All of Lincolnshire’s District Councils, the Environment Agency,
Lincolnshire Police and Crime Commissioner have joined together to support the SCRAP
fly-tipping campaign. South Holland District continues to send information via social media
throughout the year. The hashtags used as part of the campaign are #SCRAPflytipping
#KeepLincolnshireClean.
The beginning of lockdown saw the steady rise in fly tipping including incidents of large
scale fly tips within Lincolnshire. In close proximity over June/July three 40 tonne fly tips
were deposited in the beautiful Lincolnshire countryside (not within South Holland) which
required partnership working for clean-up and investigation. Due to the increase and desire
by all agencies to tackle this ongoing problem an Environmental Crime Partnership was
formed. This includes the Police, Environment Agency and the National Farmers Union.
The first meeting was held in November 2020 and it is likely to convene twice a year. An
officers group has also been set up and will meet quarterly and this will feed into the
Partnership Group, the first of the Officers group was held in October 2020.
The Environmental Crime Partnership (Lincolnshire) will cover (not an exhaustive list):
 Fly Capture; Looking at working together to ensure we capture the same data and
report it in the same way
 Fly tipping Hotspots; share the hotspots across the county
 Crime Prevention Ideas
 Social media messages (incl. the Hertfordshire Campaign) to ensure a consistent
message is delivered regularly
 Intelligence/ Info sharing
 Problem solving
1.4.3

Key areas of work
Hate Crime Strategy - A Hate Crime or Hate Incident is any crime or incident which is
perceived by the victim or any other person, to be motivated by a hostility or prejudice
based on a person’s race or perceived race; religion or perceived religion, sexual
orientation or perceived sexual orientation, disability or perceived disability and any crime
motivated by a hostility or prejudice against a person who is transgender or perceived to be
transgender. The ASB CPG has reviewed the Hate Crime Strategy within Lincolnshire and
a copy is available on the council’s website. Reports relating to a hate crime or incident can
be made to Lincolnshire Police on 101 or directly to Stop Hate UK on 0800 138 1625.
Customer Journey – task and finish group underway to review first point of contact for
customers when reporting particular types of anti-social behaviour to agencies to prevent
them being passed between agencies if limited or no inter-agency work is needed. This
includes abandoned vehicles, littering, animal related nuisance, trespassing, malicious
communication and street drinking
Oversight and coordination - of the Anti-Social Behaviour Strategy, Partnership Standard
Operating Procedures, case management system and Anti Social Behaviour Risk
Assessment Conferences.

Page 84

1.4.4

Domestic Abuse Core Priority Group (DA CPG)

1.4.5

Domestic Abuse Bill 2019-21
The Bill has been passed by the House of Commons and is now going through the House
of Lords. A summary of the Bill 2020‐2021 is:
To make provision in relation to domestic abuse; to make provision for and in connection
with the establishment of a Domestic Abuse Commissioner; to prohibit cross‐examination in
person in family proceedings in certain circumstances; to make provision about certain
violent or sexual offences, and offences involving other abusive behaviour, committed
outside the United Kingdom; and for connected purposes.
The Bill will create, for the first time, a cross‐government statutory definition of domestic
abuse, to ensure that domestic abuse is properly understood, considered unacceptable and
actively challenged across statutory agencies and in public attitudes. The Bill will put in
place a four part statutory framework for the delivery of support to victims of domestic
abuse and their children in safe accommodation and provide clarity over governance and
accountability.
The DA CPG carried out two periods of consultation within Lincolnshire to consider the
current structure under the SLP to ensure that it meets the requirements for Domestic
Abuse response within Lincolnshire. It has been agreed that a separate Board will be set
up to ensure there is a clear focus on Domestic Abuse within the County. Communication
will still continue with the Safer Lincolnshire Partnership. Arrangements are also in place to
ensure district authorities are prepared for the changes the Bill will bring.

1.4.6

Key areas of work
Make a Change is a project, developed by Respect, in partnership with Women’s Aid, to
deliver an early response to domestic abuse in Lincolnshire, creating opportunities for
change for those who use abusive behaviours in their relationships. Funding has been
secured over the next 3 years resulting in Make a Change continuing until March 2023 in
Lincolnshire.
Child witnesses of domestic abuse – reviewing the process and resources for supporting
child witnesses of domestic abuse in both the immediate aftermath of abuse and with the
long term impact of witnessing abuse a child. Work includes additional training, support
services and mental health support.
Encouraging victims to report – new communication plan for both targeted and public
messaging and awareness across services and the community.
Oversight and coordination – of Domestic Homicide Reviews, Multi-Agency Risk
Assessment Conferences for individual cases, strategy and charter and victim support
services.

1.4.7

Reducing Offending Core Priority Group (RO CPG)

Page 85

1.4.8

Current piece of work ongoing around homelessness and access to housing for those
leaving custody. Criminal justice partners and Lincoln Prison are involved and are working
on a Housing Protocol with a view to implementing at the beginning of 2021 and
established prior to probation reforms.
An in-depth evaluation of the Joint Diversionary Panel has taken place which shows
positive outcomes in terms of reducing offending.
Lincolnshire Police are currently undertaking a review of ARC Lincolnshire (Assisting
Rehabilitation through collaboration), which deals with persistent offenders, looking at how
long they keep the cohort and in relation to young people.

1.4.9

Serious and Organised Crime - Fraud and Modern Day Slavery

1.4.10 Fraud Core Priority Group
1.4.11 Lincolnshire was chosen by the Home Office as one of two areas nationally to pilot a multiagency safeguarding approach to financial abuse. This involves victim care organisations
providing a level of care that addresses both immediate and longer term victim needs to
mitigate the impact, and reduce the levels of repeat victimisation. The multi-agency model
also trials greater information sharing between the police and victim care agencies to
effectively identify vulnerable victims and disseminate prevention advice to reduce overall
levels of fraud/financial exploitation. The Safer Together team went live in July 2019,
combining teams within Lincolnshire Police and Lincolnshire Trading Standards to work
jointly on issues of scams, Op Signature and doorstep crime.
Other key areas of work include; creation of a multi-agency Fraud Toolkit, awareness
raising of fraud within the community and with frontline staff, improved understanding and
identification of fraud targeted at vulnerable victims and ensuring that vulnerable victims of
fraud are identified and safeguarded from further victimisation.
1.4.12 Modern Day Slavery Core Priority Group (MDS CPG)
1.4.13 As part of the task of identifying businesses involved in or at risk of modern day slavery, the
MDS CPG has located the Slave Free Alliance which is co-ordinated by the Hope for
Justice. The SLP is promoting the Slave Free Alliance to businesses who will supply them
with the tools they need to make a commitment to their workforce with regards to modern
day slavery.
1.4.14 The Council will be carrying out a health check by using the SLP’s Modern Day Slavery
Charter to see where further work is needed. This work will be coordinated through the
Council’s Safeguarding operations.
1.4.15 Other key areas of work include, ensuring all partners receive training and able to
recognise the signs of Modern Slavery, raise awareness of Modern Slavery and reporting
mechanisms within the community, ensure all victims of modern slavery are identified and
safeguarded.

1.5

Local Partnership Work and Initiatives

Page 86

1.5.1

Operational Partnership Team (OPT)

1.5.2

Despite the impact of Covid-19, Lincolnshire Police continue to work (virtually) within the
Community Safety and Enforcement Team. The following key benefits continue to be seen:







Increased consistency and reduced duplication
Improved timescales relating to the incremental approach
Improved problem solving approach
Shared training delivered to both Lincolnshire Police and SHDC departments to
share learning
Strengthened contacts between the Council and Lincolnshire Police
Joint communications

1.5.3

Multi Agency Meetings

1.5.4

The Community Safety and Enforcement Team facilitate on a four weekly basis an AntiSocial Behaviour Risk Assessment Conference (ASBRAC) where high risk cases are
referred into. The team also facilitate a four weekly Vulnerable Adults Panel (VAP). The
meeting produces clear action plans for how multiple agencies can support the most
vulnerable in our community.

1.5.5

A pilot is due to commence in January 2021 which will introduce the Team Around the
Adult (TAA). This will provide an escalation process from the Vulnerable Adults Panels for
those cases where individuals need additional support but do not meet the threshold for
Adult Safeguarding.

1.5.8

Community Alcohol Partnership (CAP)

1.5.9

The Community Alcohol Partnership launched in July 2019. Since the launch it and has
carried out a key pieces of work which has included:


Promoting ‘Challenge 25’ which has involved providing education and training for
licensees along with compliancy testing. Joint patrols were organised which
involved Police, Schools, an SHDC Councillor along with an officer from the
licensing team. The patrols allowed educational messages to be given to young
people that were seen.



The CAP has also promoted the use of the PASS approved ID (Citizencard). This
has been achieved through the schools.



CAP and it’s work has been publicised through the use of posters, banners and
bollard covers. Work is underway to ensure that social media is used to help
publicise both the work of the CAP along with key messages.



Key messages are being delivered around alcohol use through the MAD days within
the schools. Schools have also been offered through the CAP for a motivational
speaker/songwriter to attend the school to speak directly to the students. This has
already taken pace in one school with other schools looking at booking them for
2020.

Page 87

1.6

CCTV

1.6.1

There are 25 cameras installed in the district as part of South Holland’s CCTV Public
Space Protection Scheme; these are located in Crowland, Holbeach and Spalding. The
cameras are monitored by appropriately trained and authorised operators in the Boston
Borough Council control room, who liaise with local partners including Lincolnshire Police,
Shopwatch, Street Pastors and the Council’s Community Wardens.

1.6.2

The analysis reports for Quarter 1, 2 and 3 for 2020-21 can be seen in Appendix A, B and
C. They detail the incident types for Spalding, Holbeach and Crowland with a further
breakdown of incident types for each camera.

1.6.3

Appendix D outlines the number of incidents, arrests and evidence packs requested for
each quarter. In total there have been 86 incidents recorded with 44 evidence packs
produced and 28 arrests made. The data has also been broken down within the Appendix
for each of three locations; Spalding, Holbeach and Crowland.

1.6.4

Work has taken place over the last year to explore the information that Lincolnshire Police
hold relating to outcomes following arrest. Through utilising the OPT, a process has been
implemented which allows tracking of each incident where evidence packs have been
obtained. Some examples of where CCTV has been utilised in investigations are detailed
below. This work will be carried out every quarter.
Spalding:
 Suspicious Activity /Possession of a bladed article: CCTV review and individual
arrested and charged.
 Road Traffic Collision: CCTV reviewed and summons raised relating to the offence
 Driving under the influence of alcohol: CCTV were able to assist live and individual
summons to court
 Assault: CCTV viewed and suspect charged
Crowland:
 Attempted ATM break in: CCTV initiated the call to Police.
Holbeach:
 Concern for Safety/Suspicious circumstances: CCTV reviewed and intervention was
made by the Community Safety Team.

1.6.5

Work continues to ensure that both the service and data provided by CCTV is of an
excellent standard. Key areas of work have been delayed in 2020 due to the impact of
Covid-19 however future work will focus on:
 Reviewing camera placement
 Reviewing roaming settings for each camera (this has still been completed on a
smaller scale when new information has been received which has resulted in
changes to camera pre-sets)
 Work to explore possibilities of further analysis of the data provided by CCTV

1.6.6

The CCTV control room also played a vital part in helping to manage the impact of Covid19 on our streets. Daily reports were received for Spalding, Crowland and Holbeach

Page 88

highlighting any issues with individuals gathering, providing footfall estimates of Low,
medium or high along with any social distancing incidents that had been observed.

2.0

OPTIONS

2.1

Do nothing

2.2

Note the contents of the report

3.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

It is recommended that the contents of the report are noted and that members of the
Performance Monitoring Panel have an update on work undertaken across the partnership.

4.0

EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1

The report will give an overview of the work taken place to support the Council’s statutory
duty under s17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998.

4.2

It will support and increased understanding and awareness of the partnership working
taking place in the district.

5

IMPLICATIONS
In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the
decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues;
Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Data Protection;
Equality & Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk
Management; Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales;
Transformation Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be
implications under one or more of these headings, these are identified below.

5.1

Corporate Priorities

5.1.1

The area of work detailed in this report supports the Corporate Priority of Your Place under
two key activities:
Critical Activity 9: Work together with partners, businesses and local communities to reestablish the Pride in South Holland programme to improve the quality of public spaces to
be cleaner, greener and safer.
Critical Activity 10: Work with our partners such as Lincolnshire Community Safety
Partnership and Parish Councils to reduce and prevent crime and anti-social behaviour,
and protect the community and environment.

5.2

Crime and Disorder

Page 89

5.2.1

The Council has a duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to take steps
to reasonably prevent crime and disorder in the district.

5.2.2

Changes to this legislation were brought in through the Police and Justice Act 2006, with
subsequent regulations coming in to force in 2007. The regulations set out the minimum
requirements for partnership working to ensure effective practice and that all partnerships
deliver to a common standard.
This report evidenced compliance with the Acts and the regulations

5.2.3
5.3
5.3.1

Equality and Diversity / Human Rights
There are no direct implications from this report. It should be noted that CCTV surveillance
techniques and investigations need to consider Article 8 of the Human Rights Act, which
covers right to privacy. This is also subject to regulation under RIPA and CCTV Codes of
Practice.

5.4
5.4.1

Reputation
It is important that the council demonstrate its commitment to dealing with community
safety issues and responding to local concerns.

5.5
5.5.1

Stakeholders / Constitution / Timescales
Multi agency work and stakeholder engagement is key to delivering against the core
priorities.

6

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.2

Services are provided for all those living, working or visiting the district.

6.3
7

ACRONYMS

7.2
7.3
7.4
7.5
7.6

SLP
ARC
ASBRAC
VAP
CAP

Safer Lincolnshire Partnership
Assisting Rehabilitation through Collaboration
Anti-Social Risk Assessment Conference
Vulnerable Adults Panel
Community Alcohol Partnership

Background papers:Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Telephone Number
Email:

Dee Bedford, Community Safety & Enforcement Manager
dee.bedford@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision:

No

Exempt Decision:

No

This report refers to a Discretionary Service

Page 90

Appendices attached to this report:
Appendix A
CCTV Quarter 1 Report
Appendix B
CCTV Quarter 2 Report
Appendix C
CCTV Quarter 3 Report
Appendix D
Performance Data

Page 91

This page is intentionally left blank

Incidents Summary Analysis by Zone
01/04/2020 00:00:00

to

01/07/2020 00:00:00

Printed at:06/01/2021 09:49:07

Page 1 of 7

Page 93

Incidents Summary Analysis by Zone
01/04/2020 00:00:00

to

01/07/2020 00:00:00

Category Summary
Zone: Crowland
Category Name

Sub Category Name

Burglary

No. of Incidents
1

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Crowland:

1

Zone: Holbeach
Category Name

Sub Category Name

Anti-Social Behaviour
Search for Person

No. of Incidents
1

Missing Person

1

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Holbeach:

2

Zone: Spalding
Category Name

Sub Category Name

No. of Incidents

Anti-Social Behaviour

1

Breach of Conditions or Ban

2

Burglary

2

COVID-19 Related

6

Drugs

Possession

1

Other Theft

2

Public Order

2

Robbery

2

Search for Person

Wanted Person

2

Traffic Offence
Violence and Sexual

6
Murder

2

Weapons

3

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Spalding:

31

Total No. of Incidents :

34

Page 94
06/01/2021 09:49:07

Page 2 of 7

Incidents Summary Analysis by Zone
01/04/2020 00:00:00

to

01/07/2020 00:00:00

Page 95
06/01/2021 09:49:07

Page 3 of 7

Incidents Summary Analysis by Zone
01/04/2020 00:00:00

to

01/07/2020 00:00:00

Call Source Summary
Zone: Crowland
Call Source

No. of Incidents

Operator Generated

1

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Crowland:

1

Zone: Holbeach
Call Source

No. of Incidents

Police - Radio

2

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Holbeach:

2

Zone: Spalding
Call Source

No. of Incidents

Operator Generated

7

Police - e-mail / Fax

2

Police - Phone

1

Police - Radio

19

Shopwatch

2

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Spalding:

31

Total No. of Incidents :

34

Page 96
06/01/2021 09:49:07

Page 4 of 7

Incidents Summary Analysis by Zone
01/04/2020 00:00:00

to

01/07/2020 00:00:00

Page 97
06/01/2021 09:49:07

Page 5 of 7

Incidents Summary Analysis by Zone
01/04/2020 00:00:00

to

01/07/2020 00:00:00

Camera Summary
Zone: Crowland
Camera Name

Camera Location

No. of Incidents

SHDC 217

Trinity Bridge Crowland

1

SHDC 218

South Street Crowland

1

SHDC 219

West Street Crowland

1

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Crowland:

1

Zone: Holbeach
Camera Name

Camera Location

No. of Incidents

SHDC 220

High Street Holbeach

1

SHDC 221

High Street Holbeach

1

SHDC 222

Station Road Holbeach

2

SHDC 223

High Street Holbeach

2

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Holbeach:

2

Zone: Spalding
Camera Name

Camera Location

SHDC 201

Bridge Street

No. of Incidents

SHDC 203

Market Place

SHDC 204

Hall Place

SHDC 205

Sheep Market

4

SHDC 206

Red Lion Street

5

SHDC 207

New Road

7

SHDC 208

Herring Lane

4

SHDC 209

Swan Street

3

SHDC 210

Winfrey Avenue

3

SHDC 211

Westlode Street

5

SHDC 212

Winsover Road

3

SHDC 214

The Crescent

3

SHDC 226

Castle Sports Complex

1

SHDC 227

Castle Sports Complex

1

5
4
11

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Spalding:

31

Total No. of Incidents :

34

Page 98
06/01/2021 09:49:07

Page 6 of 7

Incidents Summary Analysis by Zone
01/04/2020 00:00:00

to

01/07/2020 00:00:00

Page 99
06/01/2021 09:49:07

Page 7 of 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Incidents Summary Analysis by Zone
01/07/2020 00:00:00

to

01/10/2020 00:00:00

Printed at:06/01/2021 09:51:12

Page 1 of 7

Page 101

Incidents Summary Analysis by Zone
01/07/2020 00:00:00

to

01/10/2020 00:00:00

Category Summary
Zone: Crowland
Category Name

Sub Category Name

Violence and Sexual

Assault

No. of Incidents
1

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Crowland:

1

Zone: Holbeach
Category Name

Sub Category Name

No. of Incidents

Alarm Activation

1

Anti-Social Behaviour

1

Search for Person

Missing Person

1

Violence and Sexual

Assault

2

Weapons

Bladed Article

1

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Holbeach:

6

Zone: Spalding
Category Name

Sub Category Name

Alcohol

Intoxication

No. of Incidents
5

Anti-Social Behaviour

5

Burglary

2

Criminal Damage & Arson

3

Other Crime

3

Public Order

Affray

5

Robbery

3

Search for Person

Wanted Person

5

Suspicious Behaviour

1

Traffic Offence

No Insurance / Tax / Licence

5

Violence and Sexual

Assault

6

Weapons

Bladed Article

2

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Spalding:

45

Total No. of Incidents :

52

Page 102
06/01/2021 09:51:13

Page 2 of 7

Incidents Summary Analysis by Zone
01/07/2020 00:00:00

to

01/10/2020 00:00:00

Page 103
06/01/2021 09:51:13

Page 3 of 7

Incidents Summary Analysis by Zone
01/07/2020 00:00:00

to

01/10/2020 00:00:00

Call Source Summary
Zone: Crowland
Call Source

No. of Incidents

Police - Radio

1

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Crowland:

1

Zone: Holbeach
Call Source

No. of Incidents

Police - Radio

6

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Holbeach:

6

Zone: Spalding
Call Source

No. of Incidents

Member of Public Via Telephone

1

Operator Generated

7

Police - Phone

2

Police - Radio

32

Shopwatch

3

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Spalding:

45

Total No. of Incidents :

52

Page 104
06/01/2021 09:51:13

Page 4 of 7

Incidents Summary Analysis by Zone
01/07/2020 00:00:00

to

01/10/2020 00:00:00

Page 105
06/01/2021 09:51:13

Page 5 of 7

Incidents Summary Analysis by Zone
01/07/2020 00:00:00

to

01/10/2020 00:00:00

Camera Summary
Zone: Crowland
Camera Name

Camera Location

SHDC 218

South Street Crowland

1

SHDC 219

West Street Crowland

1

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Crowland:

No. of Incidents

1

Zone: Holbeach
Camera Name

Camera Location

SHDC 220

High Street Holbeach

6

SHDC 221

High Street Holbeach

3

SHDC 222

Station Road Holbeach

3

SHDC 223

High Street Holbeach

3

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Holbeach:

No. of Incidents

6

Zone: Spalding
Camera Name

Camera Location

SHDC 201

Bridge Street

No. of Incidents
6

SHDC 202

Broad Street

2

SHDC 203

Market Place

6

SHDC 204

Hall Place

8

SHDC 205

Sheep Market

9

SHDC 206

Red Lion Street

6

SHDC 207

New Road

SHDC 208

Herring Lane

3

SHDC 209

Swan Street

10

SHDC 210

Winfrey Avenue

7

SHDC 211

Westlode Street

6

SHDC 212

Winsover Road

8

SHDC 214

The Crescent

5

SHDC 215

Vine Street

3

SHDC 226

Castle Sports Complex

3

SHDC 227

Castle Sports Complex

5

SHDC 228

Castle Sports Complex

5

12

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Spalding:

45

Total No. of Incidents :

52

Page 106
06/01/2021 09:51:13

Page 6 of 7

Incidents Summary Analysis by Zone
01/07/2020 00:00:00

to

01/10/2020 00:00:00

Page 107
06/01/2021 09:51:13

Page 7 of 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Incidents Summary Analysis by Zone
01/10/2020 00:00:00

to

01/01/2021 00:00:00

Printed at:06/01/2021 09:52:11

Page 1 of 7

Page 109

Incidents Summary Analysis by Zone
01/10/2020 00:00:00

to

01/01/2021 00:00:00

Category Summary
Zone: Crowland
Category Name

Sub Category Name

Suspicious Behaviour
Traffic Offence

No. of Incidents
1

No Insurance / Tax / Licence

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Crowland:

1

2

Zone: Holbeach
Category Name

Sub Category Name

Search for Person

Missing Person

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Holbeach:

No. of Incidents
4

4

Zone: Spalding
Category Name

Sub Category Name

No. of Incidents

Alcohol

2

Anti-Social Behaviour

1

Criminal Damage & Arson

2

Drugs

3

Other Crime

2

Public Order

2

Robbery

1

Search for Person

Missing Person

4

Shoplifting

4

Suspicious Behaviour

2

Traffic Offence

Dangerous Driving

6

Vehicle Crime

Theft from Motor Vehicle

1

Violence and Sexual

Assault

1

Weapons

Bladed Article

3

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Spalding:

34

Total No. of Incidents :

40

Page 110
06/01/2021 09:52:12

Page 2 of 7

Incidents Summary Analysis by Zone
01/10/2020 00:00:00

to

01/01/2021 00:00:00

Page 111
06/01/2021 09:52:12

Page 3 of 7

Incidents Summary Analysis by Zone
01/10/2020 00:00:00

to

01/01/2021 00:00:00

Call Source Summary
Zone: Crowland
Call Source

No. of Incidents

Police - Radio

2

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Crowland:

2

Zone: Holbeach
Call Source

No. of Incidents

Police - e-mail / Fax

1

Police - Radio

3

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Holbeach:

4

Zone: Spalding
Call Source

No. of Incidents

Operator Generated

3

Police - Phone

1

Police - Radio

27

Shopwatch

3

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Spalding:

34

Total No. of Incidents :

40

Page 112
06/01/2021 09:52:12

Page 4 of 7

Incidents Summary Analysis by Zone
01/10/2020 00:00:00

to

01/01/2021 00:00:00

Page 113
06/01/2021 09:52:12

Page 5 of 7

Incidents Summary Analysis by Zone
01/10/2020 00:00:00

to

01/01/2021 00:00:00

Camera Summary
Zone: Crowland
Camera Name

Camera Location

SHDC 217

Trinity Bridge Crowland

2

SHDC 218

South Street Crowland

1

SHDC 219

West Street Crowland

1

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Crowland:

No. of Incidents

2

Zone: Holbeach
Camera Name

Camera Location

SHDC 220

High Street Holbeach

4

SHDC 221

High Street Holbeach

2

SHDC 222

Station Road Holbeach

2

SHDC 223

High Street Holbeach

2

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Holbeach:

No. of Incidents

4

Zone: Spalding
Camera Name

Camera Location

SHDC 201

Bridge Street

No. of Incidents
6

SHDC 202

Broad Street

5

SHDC 203

Market Place

5

SHDC 204

Hall Place

SHDC 205

Sheep Market

SHDC 206

Red Lion Street

SHDC 207

New Road

SHDC 208

Herring Lane

3

SHDC 209

Swan Street

6

SHDC 210

Winfrey Avenue

6

SHDC 211

Westlode Street

6

SHDC 212

Winsover Road

7

SHDC 214

The Crescent

3

SHDC 215

Vine Street

3

SHDC 226

Castle Sports Complex

4

SHDC 227

Castle Sports Complex

4

SHDC 228

Castle Sports Complex

3

7
11
7
12

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Spalding:

34

Total No. of Incidents :

40

Page 114
06/01/2021 09:52:12

Page 6 of 7

Incidents Summary Analysis by Zone
01/10/2020 00:00:00

to

01/01/2021 00:00:00

Page 115
06/01/2021 09:52:12

Page 7 of 7

This page is intentionally left blank

SHDC CCTV Performance Data 20/21
Month

Arrests

Evidence

Incidents

April

6

10

17

May

3

5

13

June

3

9

4

Q.Total

12

24

34

July

5

4

16

August

3

6

13

September

8

10

23

Q.Total

16

20

52

0

0

0

Q.Total

0

0

0

Year Total

28

44

86

Q1

Q2

Q3
October
November
December
Q.Total
Q4
January
February
March

Page 117

Spalding
Month

Crowland

Holbeach

Arrests

Incidents

Arrests

Incidents

Arrests

Incidents

April

6

16

0

0

0

1

May

3

11

0

1

0

1

June

3

4

0

0

0

0

Q.Total

12

31

0

1

0

2

July

5

15

0

0

0

1

August

3

11

0

0

0

2

September

7

19

0

1

1

3

Q.Total

15

45

0

1

1

6

0

0

0

0

0

0

Q.Total

0

0

0

0

0

0

Year Total

27

76

0

2

1

8

Q1

Q2

Page 118

Q3
October
November
December
Q.Total
Q4
January
February
March

Agenda Item 11
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Christine Marshall, Executive Director Commercialisation (S151)

To:

Performance Monitoring Panel Wednesday, 27 January 2021

(Author:

Dee Bedford, Community Safety & Enforcement Manager

Subject

Corporate Enforcement Update

Purpose:

To provide Members with an update on enforcement activity

Recommendation(s):
1) That the content of the report be noted
2) That the data within this report is provided on a quarterly basis to members

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

The Council is responsible for enforcing a wide range of legislation, with powers of
enforcement usually delegated to individual officers in the various service areas concerned.

1.2

Enforcement activity in the Council is extensive and includes planning enforcement,
contraventions of building regulations, littering, fly-tipping, anti-social behaviour, abandoned
vehicles, evictions, possessions, prohibitions orders, food safety, health and safety,
licensing, noise nuisance and pollution. The activity covers individuals, public areas, homes
and businesses.

1.3

All departments dealing with enforcement do so in line with the Corporate Enforcement
Policy approved on 29th May 2018. All services adopt an incremental approach to
enforcement; starting with compliance, advice or warnings and progressing to other
enforcement activity where proportionate and appropriate.

2.0

ENFORCEMENT DATA

2.1

Performance indicators (PI’s) for enforcement commenced in April 2019, requiring all teams
across the authority with enforcement responsibilities to report on their enforcement on a
quarterly basis. The table below outlines the enforcement activity over Q2 for 2020-21.
Please note that Q1 data was reported to PMP in July 2020.

Table showing enforcement activity for Q2
Service

No.
informal
notices/
warning
letters

No. voluntary
undertakings

No.
Statutory
notices

No.
financial
penalties

No. Injunctive
Actions,
Enforcement
Orders etc

No.
Simple
Cautions

No.
Prosecutions

Environmental
Protection
Licensing*

8

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

N/A

0

0

Page 119

Food, Health
and Safety –
non covid
Communities
Planning
HousingBuilding Control
TOTALS

0

0

0

0

N/A

0

0

461
0
13
0
482

1
N/A
0
146

3
2
1
0
6

36
N/A
2
0
38

1
0
0
0
1

N/A
N/A
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

147

*N/A: service area is not legislated to use the enforcement action
2.4

Key areas of note provided by service areas are:

2.5

Environmental Protection
PIs for Q2 of 2020/21 are unchanged from the same quarter in 2019/20 with the exception
of a slight increase in the number of warning letters issued. This nominal increase may be
due to the impact of the Covid- 19 restrictions in that people are having to spend more time
at home either to work or at leisure.

2.6

Licensing
There are very few enforcement notices available to deal with licensing matters as a
different process exists in most cases, where by a licence can be reviewed and a panel
hearing is held. Enforcement action such as prosecution is usually a last resort in the most
serious cases. Over Q2 and 3 many licensed premises have had to close due to Covid
restrictions or their business has been substantially affected. One licensed café had their
alcohol licence revoked following a police investigation which found the premises open and
serving food when it should have been closed during lockdown.
The taxi trade saw a slow decline in new applications due to difficulties with external
agencies, however this is now beginning to start up again.

2.7

Food, Health & Safety
The majority of the work has been Covid compliance and outbreak management related.
Any food safety matters have been resolved and there are 2 ongoing health and safety
investigations. Some inspections have taken place during this period and alternative
compliance checks have been implemented. A number of businesses, such as pubs and
restaurants have had to close or operate differently. There have been a number of new
business start-ups too which the team have been advising.

2.8

Covid Enforcement
The Public Protection Service has been leading on the regulatory enforcement of the
various Covid regulations and statutory guidance in respect of business premises. Most
businesses have sought to comply and have understood the evolving requirements. Only a
few have either misunderstood or ignored the requirements, however the vast majority have
complied straight away following contact from officers. The Service has continued to
receive a enquiries from business as to how the requirements relate to them, as well as
complaints or intelligence from members of the public regarding alleged breaches of the
legal requirements. This was more of an issue during the tier changes towards the end of
2020.

Page 120

The Public Protection Service has been representing the Council on a number of LRF
groups and cells during the pandemic and in terms of enforcement this has mainly been
through the EEC Group (Engage, Enable, Comply). This Group is made up of Public
Protection / Environmental Health Managers from across the County, along with LCC,
Lincolnshire Police and Lincolnshire Legal Services and has continued to make
recommendations to the decision making bodies within the LRF. Additionally, Public
Protection Managers have attended the Environmental Health Officers sub-group, which
has been looking at the finer detail of interpretation of the evolving legislation and guidance
and considering consistency of approach across the County.
2.9

Communities
The number of informal notices/warning letters issued by the Community Safety and
Enforcement team increased during quarter 2. This was largely due to officers adapting
their investigations techniques due to Covid restrictions on home visits and door knocking.
The number was also impacted by warning letters that were sent for possible breach of
lockdown restrictions.
The figures show an increase on quarter 1’s figures for financial penalties which reflect the
reopening of the high streets during this quarter and increased footfall

2.10

Planning
Despite the number of planning enforcement complaints increasing since the beginning of
the first lockdown, the planning enforcement team have been able to investigate these in
much the same way as normal, despite site visits being suspended for several weeks and
then severely restricted for a further period. There has been reduced Legal capacity,
particularly during the first half of the year, but this hasn’t significantly affected the ability to
take formal action where necessary. The one area where there have been significant
delays is with regards to prosecutions. This was primarily due to Magistrates Courts being
closed for a lengthy period and there now being a large backlog of cases. This has
resulted in two pending prosecutions being pushed back to the beginning of next year. The
pandemic has been a consideration when deciding whether to extend notice compliance
periods and whether to prosecute, but ultimately hasn’t changed the outcome of any
investigation. Where swift and expedient action has been necessary, this has occurred.

2.11

Housing
Housing has enforced against slightly more cases than last year. The Housing Services
Team and wider Housing department are becoming more confident challenging and
enforcing cases, balanced with successful responses from informally challenging tenants
without the need to formally enforce. It is anticipated that enforcement figures have been
impacted by Covid-19 as non-essential home visits have been cancelled. Prior to March,
officers had a target to complete 150 internal property inspections per officer to ensure
officers access properties in addition to Decent Homes inspections, Repairs and Gas
Safety checks. These internal visits were often key to highlighting property alterations
where the tenant had not requested permission. Home visits continue to only be carried out
where essential visits are required to mitigate the risk of Covid-19 to officers and tenants.
Our approach to formal enforcement where necessary is gradually being received by
tenants across the district.

2.12

Building Control
Applications were down in Q1 on previous years due to Covid but in Q2 applications
recovered and passed pervious years as part of Covid recovery.

Page 121

Early intervention is key for the team and is successful in not ending up taking any legal
action. Their interventions can be varied from initial plan checking where they discover
potential contravention and getting the drawings altered to getting to site and finding the
wrong material been ordered.
3.0

Enforcement Case Examples

3.1

Below are some example cases where enforcement action has been taken in Q2:

3.2

Environmental Protection
The team are taking enforcement action for the breach of an Abatement Notice which was
served in June 2020, for noise nuisance from barking dogs. Subsequent to service of the
Notice, complaints continued to be received. Officers have carried out further monitoring
both in person and with noise recording equipment. This monitoring demonstrates the noise
from the barking dogs is continuing unabated. Subsequently the EPT are instigating legal
proceedings for breaches of the Abatement Notice

3.3

Planning
The issuing of a planning enforcement notice in relation to an unauthorised encampment
within the district. The encampment moved onto land within their ownership in June this
year without planning permission. They were given one month to submit a retrospective
planning application, and when this wasn’t forthcoming, a planning enforcement notice was
issued in July requiring the unauthorised use to cease within 6 months. The notice has
since been appealed and the matter is now in the hands of the Planning Inspectorate
awaiting a decision.

3.4

Housing
Housing informally write to tenants regarding garden and property condition before taking
action. They currently have a hoarding case whereby they were in the position to serve a
Community Protection Warning (CPW) however they have spent some time with the tenant
and managed to achieve successful steps without using a CPW by addressing complaints
tenants had regarding property condition and permission for pets to encourage them to
trust the Housing Team, build relations and work with us so no formal action was required.
The team have also recently been successful in achieving an injunction through the courts
to enforce the removal of an unsafe conservatory installed by a tenant without permission,
and also to tidy their garden. The judge required the tenant to pay the court costs of £2000
within 14 days and for the conservatory to be removed by the end of January.
The team continue with another major enforcement case from 2019 where the courts are
now satisfied that an injunction has been breached. We are now proceeding with
possession of the property however court delays mean this is likely to not be progressed by
the courts until the spring.

3.5

Communities
The majority of the work carried out by the team sits at a lower enforcement level with
informal warnings being issued and any potential vulnerabilities being identified that could
be contributing to the behaviour. This allows for early intervention to take place, often
without the need to take formal enforcement action.
There are cases however where early intervention is not successful which can result in
legal action. The team were successful in obtaining an interim injunction in August on a

Page 122

male that had caused a significant about of harassment, alarm and distress to both
members of the public and to officers at the council. The Injunction was sought to prevent
further incidents from occurring. The case was a good example of cross-departmental
working with the Housing team and the strong interagency links with Lincolnshire Police.
4.0

Fly tipping

4.1

Nationally there has been a significant increase in Fly tipping this year in line with Covid-19
and the impact of lock down restrictions. Enforcement for fly tipping offences sits within the
Community Safety and Enforcement team and below are the figures broken down into
years since April 2018 for enforcement outcomes:
April 2018- March 2019
April 2019- March 2020
April 2020- December 2020

Fixed Penalty Notices(FPN)
1
3
4

Prosecutions
4
4
0

4.2

Those responsible for fly tipping offences cause a significant impact on those living in and
visiting the district and work continues to identify those responsible and gather the required
evidence to either issue an FPN or prosecute through the courts.

4.3

A number of areas of work are currently underway to assist officers with their
investigations:





New types of cameras have been identified and assessments are underway to
ensure they are of the standard that their evidence can be used in a prosecution.
Many rural sites across the district do not have electricity that a standard deployable
camera would need. New technology has now provided an opportunity for the
Council to utilise cameras in areas where this was not previously an option.
Joint working with Lincolnshire Police to carry out stops on vehicles
Increased inter-agency working across the County to share intelligence and best
practise

4.4

Raising awareness around fly tipping offences, including duty of care has been a key focus
for the team. Messages continue to go out via social media around this. All FPNs along
with prosecutions are now publicised by the Council to send a clear message that this
behaviour will not be tolerated.

4.5

Due to Covid-19, investigations have been impacted and courts have also seen a
significant backlog. This has had a detrimental impact on the ability for the council to push
cases through for prosecution. Once restrictions are lifted, full investigations can resume
and it is expected that the figures for enforcement will reflect this.

5.0

OPTIONS

5.1

Do nothing

5.2

Note the contents of the report and provide members with a further update report in six
months’ time.

5.3

That the data within this report is provided on a quarterly basis to members

Page 123

6.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

6.1

It is recommended that the data presented within this report is provided on a quarterly basis
to members.

7.0

EXPECTED BENEFITS

7.1

The quarterly report would allow for increased communication and understanding around
each service.

7.2

The report would provide an overview of the Council’s enforcement activities.

7.3

The report would enable members to ensure that enforcement action is being taken
appropriately and that resident and community concerns are being addressed.

8.0

IMPLICATIONS
In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the
decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues;
Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Equality &
Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk Management;
Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; Transformation
Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be implications under
one or more of these headings, these are identified below.

8.1

Constitutional & Legal

8.1.1

There are many pieces of legislation that span across Planning, Building Control, Housing,
Environmental, Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Disorder and Public Protection functions.
The most appropriate tool or power will be used for each case to resolve the issue.

8.2

Corporate Priorities

8.2.1

Enforcement supports the following Council priorities:
 Your Home;
 Your Place;
 Your Health and Wellbeing;
 Your Opportunity; and Our Council.

8.3

Crime and Disorder

8.3.1

There are no direct implications from this report. However, taking appropriate enforcement
action is a key part of community safety and addressing crime and disorder concerns.

8.4

Equality and Diversity / Human Rights

8.4.1

There are no direct implications from this report. It should be noted that surveillance
techniques and investigations need to consider Article 8 of the Human Rights Act which
covers right to privacy. Judicial and quasi-judicial action is also subject to Article 6 – right to
a fair trial.

Page 124

8.5

Financial

8.5.1

There are no direct implications from this report. However, some enforcement action can
result in financial penalties alongside proportionate legal costs.

8.6

Reputation

8.6.1

It is important that the council demonstrates its commitment to taking appropriate and
proportionate enforcement action and that it effectively deals with local concerns.

8.7

Risk Management

8.7.1

Enforcement action, particularly when it reaches court proceedings, is open to challenge.
It is important that there is robust evidence to take enforcement action beyond an initial
warning stage. There needs to be confidence in a case if it leads to court. Any case with
insufficient evidence, which fails at court, has significant cost implications for local
authorities and officers have a duty to use public money appropriately. Enforcement
action should be in the best interest of the public and be proportional, consistent,
transparent and targeted.

9.0

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

9.1

Services are provided for all those living, working or visiting the district.

10.0

ACRONYMS

10.1
10.2

FPN Fixed Penalty Notice
CPW Community Protection Warnings

Background papers:Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Telephone Number
Email:

Dee Bedford, Community Safety & Enforcement Manager,
01775 764457
dee.bedford@sholland.gov.uk,

Key Decision:

N

Exempt Decision:

N

Page 125

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 12
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Executive Manager – Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer)

To:

Performance Monitoring Panel Wednesday, 27 January 2021

(Author:

Christine Morgan Democratic Services Officer)

Subject

Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme

Purpose:

To set out the Work Programme of the Performance Monitoring Panel

Recommendation:
That the Panel gives consideration to the report and identifies any issues for discussion.

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

This report records the issues for consideration that have been identified by the Panel for
inclusion on its Work Programme.

1.2

Issues

1.2.1

Appendix A sets out the dates of future Panel meetings along with proposed items for
consideration. These items were either originally suggested by councillors or are being
referred to the Panel from officers or the Cabinet. The appendix will be updated as new
items are identified.

1.2.2

Appendix B sets out the task groups that have been identified by the Panel. The table
shows:






The name of the task group
What it wants to achieve
Key dates
Membership of the task group
When the task group will be reporting back to the Panel

1.2.3 It is hoped that in presenting the information in this way, and by having the report as a
standing item on the agenda, it will record the issues identified by the Panel and provide the
opportunity for councillors to monitor the progress of its Work Programme.
2.0

OPTIONS

2.1

To note and consider the current status of the Work Programme.

2.2

To do nothing.

3.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1

To allow councillors to feed into the Panel’s calendar of Work Programme items and the

Page 127

Work Programme on a regular basis, to ensure that they stay relevant and up to date.
4.0

EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1

The calendar of Work Programme items and the Work Programme will provide councillors
with up to date and relevant information. Timelines for various calendar items and
proposed task groups within the Work Programme are included within the appendices.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS
In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of
the decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues;
Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Equality &
Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk Management;
Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; Transformation
Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be implications under
one or more of these headings, these are identified below.

5.1

Corporate Priorities

5.1.1

In identifying issues for inclusion on the Work Programme, councillors consider the
suitability of the subject, taking into account considerations such as whether the issue is
strategic and significant and whether it is likely to lead to effective outcomes. One of the
indicators against which each potential task group is scored identifies how strongly the
topic links to the Council’s key aims and priorities.

6.0

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1

This report has no implications however, as individual items are progressed through the
Work Programme, their impact on wards and communities will be assessed.

7.0

ACRONYMS

7.1

None.

Background papers:-

None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Telephone Number
Email:

Christine Morgan Democratic Services Officer
01775 764454
cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision:

No

Exempt Decision:

No

This report refers to a Mandatory Service
Appendices attached to this report:
Appendix A
Appendix B

Work Programme Calendar 2020/21
Task Group work Programme 2020/21

Page 128

APPENDIX A
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL – CALENDAR OF WORK PROGRAMME
ITEMS 2020/21

Date of
Meeting
27 January
2021

Agenda items










17 March 2021







Items to be
allocated when
2021/22
Schedule of
Meetings



Crime and Disorder – Update report on community safety
and how it is being delivered through the various tiers of
Groups and Panels (including the East Lincs CSP and newly
formed Lincolnshire CSP) – Update to be provided every six
months by the Portfolio Holder for Community Development.
Last discussed at meetings on 18/6/19 and 11/9/19, with a
COVID-relevant update on 8/7/20.
Economic Development and Inward Investment update –
(last update received 11 September 2019, updated reports to
be on a six-monthly basis, to include an executive summary
alongside the main report). COVID-relevant update received
8/7/20
Untidy sites – information to be compiled, highlighting what
options the authority had, how properties could be brought
back into use, and providing an update on individual
buildings
Corporate Enforcement – update report on how the Authority
is addressing the various types of enforcement, following the
Authority-wide reorganisation (last update 6/2/18, 31/7/18,
30/1/19 and 12/11/19). Six-monthly. Include information
requested at November 2020 meeting-detailed fly tipping
enforcement data and 3 year comparison data.
Q3 Performance Report – To review the Council’s
performance for the time period (include Q2 data for
comparison purposes).
Marketing/Renovation of Industrial units – six monthly update
report requested at meeting held 29/1/20 – last update
received 9/9/20)
Update report on progress of the Digital Work Programme
(Six-monthly updates requested at meeting held 29/1/20, last
updated received 9/9/20). To include financial informationhow much of funding used, what it had been used for and
whether VFM achieved.
Six-monthly update report on Refuse Collection from Private
Drives (first reported 8/7/20)
Sir Halley Stewart Playing Field Task Group – update report
on the current status of recommendations, and an update on
all the issues raised by the original task group (as requested
by PMP November 2020). Decision then to be taken on
whether new Task Group necessary.
May 2021 - Swimming Pool and Leisure Facilities Contract
Task Group – update on progress of recommendations (last
updates received 18 June 2019, 11 September 2019 and 10
November 2020). Include information requested at November
2020 meeting.

Page 129

confirmed



Items yet to be
allocated.






Workforce Strategy 2019-2023 (revised following CV19) –
considered at Council 29/7/20 – Diarise to monitor
achievement against the 2 schedules considered – April-July
2021
Information report on future commercialisation projects
(Richard Hodgson/Christine Marshall – last update 13
November 2018).
Commercialisation (2) – how effectively is the Authority
managing commercial opportunities? Second report, a
general report around commercialisation.
Cost of running the South Holland Centre
What areas of risk exist within Public Services for cost
shunting, and how can this be avoided?

For future consideration




Note: Following consideration of the Key Decision Plan, PMP and PDP have
requested that a special Joint Meeting will be held to discuss the setting up
of the South Holland Building Consultancy prior to it being considered by
Cabinet (date to be confirmed).
Commercialisation – As potential projects arise, PMP to consider scrutiny
****************

To be considered annually:
1) The Sir Halley Stewart Playing Field Task Group presented its Final
Report to Council on 21 January 2015. Its first recommendation was:
That the Council (i) advises the Charity Commission that the Task Group has
considered the Commission’s Guidance on public benefit and is satisfied that the
Council is compliant; (ii) provides a copy of this report to the Commission in order to
outline the actions proposed by the Council; and (iii) invites the Performance
Monitoring Panel to appoint a Task Group on an annual (single meeting) basis
for the specific purpose of ensuring that the Council remains compliant with
Charity Commission Guidance.

A meeting took place on 24 January 2019. Suggest next meeting January 2021
2) Review of Implemented Planning Decisions – Tour undertaken 5
September 2019, next tour to be undertaken in September 2020
UPDATE – Provisionally booked for 15 September 2021 – to be reviewed
May 2021 in light of Covid situation

Page 130

APPENDIX B
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL – WORK PROGRAMME 2020/2021

Page 131

Name of Task Group

What the Task Group wants to achieve

Date added
to Work
Programme

Date Work
Commenced

Membership
of Task
Group

Proposed date of
report to Panel

Public Open Spaces Task
Group

To be confirmed at first meeting.

12
November
2019

TBC

B Alcock
J R Astill
A C Beal
CJTH Brewis
PA Redgate

TBC

Public Toilets Task Group

To review public toilets in the district, looking at
location, cleaning regimes, usage, reasons for
closure and running costs.
To use information gathered to ensure value
for money, good service, and that the right
money was spent in the right place.

6 February
2018

23 April 2018

J R Astill
CJTH Brewis
T A Carter
GK Dark
(Chairman)
PC Foyster

30 January 2019
To Cabinet 12
Feb 2019
Response from
Cabinet to PMP
20 Mar 2019.
Update on
progress PMP
11/9/19 & 29/1/20.

Swimming Pool and
Leisure Centre Contract
Task Group

To review the Spalding swimming pool and
leisure centre, specifically:
 To consider performance, in relation to the
contract, by the Authority and the
contractor, particularly with reference to
building maintenance and cleanliness,
promotion of the facilities and reinvestment
in the facilities;

1 December 21 January
2015
2016

J R Astill
T A Carter
G K Dark
(Chairman)
J L King
A M Newton

30 August 2016
To Cabinet 8
November 2016
Response and
update on
progress PMP
4/2/17, 16/5/17,

Name of Task Group

What the Task Group wants to achieve




Sir Halley Stewart Playing
Field Task Group

Page 132

Effectiveness of CCTV
Task Group

Date added
to Work
Programme

Date Work
Commenced

Membership
of Task
Group

To look at the Council’s performance in
monitoring the leisure facilities; and
To learn from the outcomes of this scrutiny,
to inform future contracts and contract
monitoring.

7/11/17, 13/11/18,
8/06/19 & 11/9/19.
Next update was
due 10/11/20

Recommendation of the original Task Group to
appoint a Task Group on an annual (single
meeting) basis for the specific purpose of
ensuring that the Council remained compliant
with Charity Commission Guidance.

15 June
2016

Purpose of Review – To establish the current
situation with regard to CCTV and make
recommendations to Cabinet on the way
forward.

6 November 21 November
2012
2012

Terms of Reference – To examine the
effectiveness of the SHDC CCTV service and
prospects for future provision.
Panel received update on 8 April 2014 from the
Portfolio Holder for Localism and Big Society
on the position regarding CCTV. Performance
information will be available on the new system
in the future, once it becomes operational.
The Task Group will remain in operation to
scrutinise performance and will start to do

Proposed date of
report to Panel

Date to be
confirmed.

GR Aley
JR Astill
GK Dark
PC Foyster
AM Newton

Meeting took
place on 24
January 2019.

B Alcock
M Howard
R M Rudkin
D J Wilkinson
(Chairman)

Interim report to
PMP 29 January
2013
Interim report to
Cabinet 19
February 2013.
Tracking of
recommendations
to PMP 26 March
2013
Updates to PMP:
8 April 2014, and
six-monthly
thereafter.

Suggest Jan 21

Name of Task Group

What the Task Group wants to achieve

Date added
to Work
Programme

Date Work
Commenced

Membership
of Task
Group

Proposed date of
report to Panel

25
November
2014

To be
confirmed

To be
confirmed

To be confirmed

this once the information becomes
available.

Page 133

The effectiveness of
management companies
set up to undertake
maintenance on
residential estates
throughout the district
past, present and for the
future.

Scope to be confirmed.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 13
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Christine Marshall, Executive Director Commercialisation (S151)

To:

Performance Monitoring Panel Wednesday, 27 January 2021

(Author:

Dee Bedford, Community Safety & Enforcement Manager)

Subject

Untidy Sites

Purpose:

To provide an update on untidy sites within the district

Recommendation(s):
1) That the content of the report be noted

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

The Performance Monitoring Panel on 29th January 2020 requested an updated report on
untidy sites within the district. Due to the impact of Covid-19 this report has been delayed.

1.2

Appendix A details an updated list of untidy sites where the council holds records in relation
to a report received from a member of the public. It outlines the types of reports that have
been received, the legislation that could be used if appropriate and proportionate and what
action is currently being taken where recent reports have been received.

1.3

At the request of the panel the appendix also includes any additional information held by
the Planning Department and Growth and Commercialisation.

1.4

Planning – Untidy Sites

1.5

Section 215 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) provides a local
planning authority (LPA) with the power, in certain circumstances, to take steps requiring
land and buildings to be cleaned up when its condition adversely affects the amenity of the
area. If it appears that the amenity of part of their area is being adversely affected by the
condition of neighbouring land and buildings, they may serve a notice on the owner
requiring that the situation be remedied. These notices set out the steps that need to be
taken and the time within which they must be carried out.

1.6

LPAs also have powers under s219 to undertake the clean-up works themselves and to
recover the costs from the landowner.

1.7

The use of s215 by LPAs is discretionary and it is therefore up to the LPA to decide
whether a notice under these provisions would be appropriate in a particular case, taking
into account all the local circumstances. LPAs will need to consider, for example, the
condition of the site, the impact on the surrounding area and the scope of their powers. In

Page 135

some circumstances s215 notices may be used in conjunction with other powers, for
example, repair notices in respect of listed buildings or dangerous structure notices.
1.8

Wherever possible, however, action using s215 needs to be combined with proactive
measures such as empty homes strategies, development briefs and public/private funding
programmes, as well as other reactive enforcement and development management tools
(including conditions and legal agreements on planning permissions).

1.9

The scope of works that can be required in s215 notices is wide and includes planting,
clearance, tidying, enclosure, demolition, re-building, external repairs and repainting. In
preparing notices it is critical that LPAs ensure that the works specified by a notice do not
themselves result in a breach of planning control e.g. unlawful works to a listed building, or
material alterations to premises for which planning permission should be sought.

1.10

Where costs cannot be immediately recovered for direct action works LPAs have the option
of registering a charge on the property with the Land Registry, thus assuring full cost
recovery plus base-rate interest. There is also provision within the Land Charges Act for the
interim procedure of placing an estimate of the charge that will become due on the
property. This effectively ensures the land or property cannot be sold without a charge
being shown on the land.

1.11

Planning – Planning Permission

1.12

A number of the sites are in highly sensitive locations within conservation areas and
proximity to listed buildings, thus any redevelopment of the sites would need to be
designed to reflect this. Planning permission has been granted for the majority of the sites
listed in Appendix A, it is the developer who for various reasons has not implemented the
permissions, nor sought to submit further applications or engage in discussions with
Planning regarding alternative development. Planning is not being obstructive, a S215
notice is not in itself going to provide any solution to these sites, particularly where the
owners are holding companies based abroad. Planning would positively encourage
discussions with willing developers with regard to bringing forward the redevelopment of
these sites.

1.13

Commercial Derelict Buildings and Disused and Derelict Land Enforcement Policy

1.14

A Policy is being drafted to help ensure

1.15



Consistency across departments when responding to complaints relating to
derelict buildings, disused and derelict land



To ensure all contact is recorded on a centralised database



To ensure a co-ordinated response to complainants



To allow enforcement action to quickly be identified



To notify external agencies



To keep Ward Members updated

The draft Policy has been circulated to relevant teams within the Council and will be taken
through the Policy Development Panel for scrutiny.

Page 136

2

OPTIONS

2.1

Do nothing

2.2

Note the content of the report

3

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

It is recommended that the contents of the report are noted and that work continues to
ensure an agreed process is in place across departments when responding to reports
relating to untidy sites.

4

EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1

The report provides members with an update on the reports received in relation to untidy
sites and the current action being taken.

4.2

Members will have assurance that enforcement action is being taken appropriately and that
resident and community concerns are being addressed.

4.3

It updates members on work in progress to help ensure a consistent approach.

5

IMPLICATIONS
In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the
decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues;
Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Data Protection;
Equality & Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk
Management; Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales;
Transformation Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be
implications under one or more of these headings, these are identified below.

5.1

Constitutional & Legal

5.1.1

There are many pieces of legislation that span across Planning, Building Control, Housing,
Environmental, Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Disorder and Public Protection functions.
The most appropriate tool or power will be used for each case to resolve the issue.

5.2

Corporate Priorities

5.2.1

The work around untidy sites supports the following council priorities:
 Your Place
 Your Health and Wellbeing
 Your Council

5.3

Crime and Disorder

5.3.1

Working with the owners and taking proportionate enforcement action is a key part of
community safety and addressing crime and disorder concerns

5.4

Equality and Diversity / Human Rights

Page 137

5.5.1

It should be noted that surveillance techniques and investigations need to consider Article 8
of the Human Rights Act which covers right to privacy. Judicial and quasi-judicial action is
also subject to Article 6 – right to a fair trial.

5.5

Health & Wellbeing

5.5.1

Ensuring appropriate action is taken with regards to untidy sites impacts on the health and
well-being of local communities.

5.6

Financial

5.6.1

There are no direct implications for this report however enforcement action can result in
financial penalties alongside proportionate legal costs.

6

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1

Services are provided for all those living, working or visiting the district

7

ACRONYMS

7.1

LPA – Local Planning Authority

Background papers:Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Telephone Number
Email:

None

Dee Bedford, Community Safety & Enforcement Manager
dee.bedford@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision:

N

Exempt Decision:

N

This report refers to both a Mandatory and Discretionary Services
Appendices attached to this report:
Appendix A (exempt)
Untidy Sites

Page 138

By virtue of paragraph(s) 6a of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 139

Agenda Item 16

This page is intentionally left blank

